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About Us

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited is a premium guality provider of total communications services in Hong Kong and
Macau. Its goal is to better enrich customers’ lives by getting them ¢loser to the things that matter to them.

The company is leading the way in mobile, fixed-line and broadband markets, leveraging its best-in-class service pillars - segmented
services and products, superior network performance and unbeatable customer experience.

The company's main subsidiary in Hong Kong operates as SmarTone-Vodafone, a Partner Network of Vodafone Group Plc, the world's
leading mobile telecommunications company.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited was established in 1992 and has been listed in Hong Kong since 1996. Itis a
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, one of the largest property companies in Hong Kong.
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Chairman
Mr. Douglas Li
Chief Executive Officer
Mr, Patrick Kai-lung Chan
*  Mr. Michae! Yick-kam Wong
¥ Mr. Wing-yui Cheung
*  Mr. David Norman Prince
*  Mr Wing-chung Yung
*  Mr, Thomas Hon-wah Siu
** Dr. Eric Ka-cheung Li, JP
** Mr. Leung-sing Ng, JP
** Mr. Xiang-dong Yang
** Mr. Eric Fock-kin Gan
** Mr. Peter David Sullivan

*  Non-Executive Director
** Independent Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary
Mr. Alvin Yau-hing Mak

Authorised Representatives
Mr, Douglas Li
Mr. Alvin Yau-hing Mak

Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamitton HM 11, Bermuda
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Kowloon, Hong Kong

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
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22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Keng Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar
Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda} Limited
Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road,
Pembroke HMOB, Bermuda

Principal Bankers
Standard Chartered Bank
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Legal Advisors to the Company
As to Hong Kong law
Slaughter and May

As to Bermuda law
Conyers, Dill & Pearman

Bermuda Resident Representative
Mr. John Charles Ross Coflis
Mr. Anthony Devon Whaley (Deputy)
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{Expressed in Hong Kong doilars in millions

IYyrgriw

except per share amounts)

Year ended or as at 30 June

2008 2007

Consolidated profit and loss account
Revenues 4,073 4,039
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 276 158
Earnings per share ($) 0.48 0.27
Dividends per share

Total for the year {($} 0.48 0.27

Special cash dividend ($) Nil 0.85
Consolidated balance sheet
Total assets 4,843 5,440
Current liabilities {1,070} (1,075)
Total assets less current liabilities 3,773 4,365
Nen-current liabilities (813) 827)
Minority interests {28) (27)
Net assets 2,932 3,511
Share capital 57 58
Reserves 2,875 3,453
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2,932 3.5M
Consolidated cashfiow
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,012 a1
interest received 79 97
Purchase of fixed assets {534} {392)
Additions of handet subsidies {280} {193)
Payment of repurchase of shares {64) (22)
Dividends paid (include minority interests) {839) (78)
Other {45) (58)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and bank balances, and held-to-maturity debt securities (671) 297
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I am pleased to report the results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Financial Highlights

Revenues increased modestly to $4,073 million, with the 9% growth in mobile service revenue offset by the decline in handset
revenue. Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {"EBITDA") increased by 16% to $1,088 million. Profit attributable
to equity holders grew by 75% to $276 million. Earnings per share amounted to 47.8 cents.

Dividend
Your Board proposes a final dividend of 20 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of 28 cents per share, total dividend for
the year will be 48 cents per share, representing a payout ratio of 100%.

Business Review

Hong Kong

SmarTone-Vodafone focuses on stimulating mobile revenue growth by delivering unrivalled experience at exceptional value to target
customer segments. We continue to innovate vigorously to provide new compelling and differentiated muliimedia services. In the
year, we have also expanded beyond mobile to provide innovative new services in the fixed-line and broadband markets.

The year under review saw continued increase in mobile service revenue, driven mainly by improving ARPU and customer profile,
Data revenue showed encouraging growth and its contribution to mobile service revenue was 23.2%, a significant increase compared
to 18.5% for the previous year. This growth was predominantly driven by the increasing adoption of multimedia services, which
accounted for two-thirds of 1otal data revenue.

Blended ARPU registered a 5% growth to $237 and postpaid ARPU increased by 9% to $284. Postpaid churn rate reduced from 2.3%
in June 2007 10 1.7% in June 2008. Total mobile customer number remained broadly stable at 1,118,000 as of 30 June 2008. Our 3G
customer base is expanding and currently represents 47% of postpaid customers.

During the year, SmarTone-Vodafone continued to introduce new best-in-class multimedia services, including MusicXS - the world's
first subscription based unlimited music download service for beth moebile and PC; Market Watch - a real-time digest of Hong Kong
stock market action in a TV-like format; as well as FoneTV - a personal mobile TV service offering a rich variety of re-broadcast live TV
channels, as well as made-for-mobile programming. Qur commitment to deliver superior customer experience has been taken to
another level with the opening of our first Experience Store in Central. Built on SmarTone-Vodafone's leadership in retail design and
service, the new store showcases our numerous services, and demonstrates how easy they are to use and how useful they are in
customers’ everyday lives. The Experience Store offers customers a comfortable and engaging environment to explore and experience
our services through direct hands-on trial, services workshop and even personal coaching.
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With the emergence of new technologies and the convergence of
maobile and Internet, traditional boundaries in the telecommunications
market are breaking down. Customers’ needs are changing all the
time and they increasingly demand communications services that span
mobile, fixed-line and broadband. Recently, SmarTone-Vodafone has
taken a step forward by introducing HomePhone+, a wireless fixed-
line service for both residential and business customers. With an
innovative and rich service set, it offers a fixed-line experience
unprecedented in Hong Kong with its remarkable ease of use. In
mobile broadband, we have led the market by introducing new tiered
price plans for different speeds. This brings our price points ¢lose 10
that of fixed broadband, allowing us to address a much wider market.

We further enhanced our HSPA network during the year to improve coverage, quality and capacity. Anticipating the vastly increased
bandwidth requirements brought on by new services, we are well on the way in our migration to an all-IP network infrastructure.
Upgrade of billing and customer management systems have also been completed in order to enhance operational efficiency. These
initiatives will result in a short-term increase in operating expense and capital expenditure, but an improved cost structure going
forward,

Macau
Mobile business in Macau continued to grow, with service revenue and profits registering an encouraging increase. With the slowing
Macau economy, there will be increasing pressure on the business for the year ending 30 June 2009,

Prospects

Looking ahead, with intensifying price competition, growth in service revenue is expected to stow down. Costs will increase further,
driven mainly by the provision of increased bandwidth, increasing handset subsidies, as well as general cost inflation. Together with
lower interest income as a result of the decrease in net cash balance and lower interest rates, profits for the year ending 30 June 2009
are expected to come under prassure.

With a solid foundation in mobile, we are establishing SmarTone-Vodafone as the premium quality provider of total communications
services in Hong Kong, leveraging our best-in-class service pillars — segmented services and products, superior network performance
and unbeatable custormer experience. This strategy should enable your Company to compete more effectively in the market and be
better positioned in the increasingly integrated communications industry over the long term.

Appreciation

During the year, Mr. Andrew Sing-tak So resigned as Non-Executive Director of your Company and Mr. Peter David Sullivan have
joined the Board as Independent Non-Executive Director. In July 2008, Mr. Thomas Hon-wah Siu was appointed Non-Executive
Director of your Company. | would like to thank Mr. So for his contributions and advice, and welcome Mr. Sullivan and Mr. Siu to the
Board. | would also like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our customers and shareholders for their continuing
support, my fellow directors for their guidance as well as our staff for their dedication and hardwork.

Raymond Ping-luen Kwok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2008

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited
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Review of financial results

Revenues grew slightly by 1% to $4,073 million (2006/07: $4,039 million}, consisting of
a 9% increase in mobile service revenue, partly offset by a 28% decline in mobile
telephone and accessory sales. Driven by the increase in ARPU and customer base,
mobile service revenue rose by 9%, outweighing increases in cost of services provided
and operating expenses of 7% and 6% respectively. Mobile telephone and accessory
sales declined by 28%, which was matched by a 29% fall in cost of inventories sold. As
a result, earnings befare interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA™)
increased by 16% to $1,088 million (2006/07: $340 million). After a 2% decrease in

depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal, operating profit surged by B8% to $344 Smarlone vocatoor

million {2006/07: $183 million). Finance income fell by 23%. Finance costs, comprising
mainly of accretion expenses in relation to mobile licence fees, rose by 7%. Profit
attributable to equity helders of the Company reporied an encouraging 75% growth to
$276 million (2006/07: $158 million).

Revenues grew by 1% to $4,073 million (2006/07: $4,039 mitlion).

. Mobile service revenue grew by $287 million or 9% to $3,433 million (2006/07:
$3,146 million} driven by higher ARPU and a slightly targer customer base. Growth
in revenue from data, roaming and prepaid services offset the impact of lower

local voice revenue, reflecting the competitive pressure on basic tariffs in the

market.

Sharp SX862

Hong Kong blended ARPU rose by 5% to $237 (2006/07: $225), reflecting continued improvement in the quality of the Group's

customer base.

Hong Kong postpaid ARPU reported an encouraging 8% growth to $284 (2006/07: $261) despite sustained downward pricing

pressures.

Data service revenue is increasingly important to the Group's revenue growth. Data service revenue achieved a strong 36%
increase, attesting to increasing penetration of 3G and HSPA devices, and growing adoption of multimedia services.

. Mobile telephone and accessory sales fell by $252 million or 28% to $640 million {2006/07: $893 million) largely due to lower
average unit handset price, as a result of severe market competition.

BlackBerry® Bold™ from Vodafone

Cost of inventories sold and services provided decreased by 14% to $1,324 million {2006/07: $1,533
million}. Cost of inventories sold fell by 29% to $624 million (2006/07: $881 million) in line with the
decline in mobile telephone and accessory sales. Cost of services provided grew by 7% to $700
million {2006/07: $652 million} driven by increased usage, resulted in higher interconnect charges,
data service costs and roaming partner charges.

Operating expenses, excluding depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal, rose by 6% to $1,662
million {2006/07: $1,5666 million). Network operating costs increased by 9% as a result of the Group's
continuing enhancement of network capacity, quality and coverage. Sales and marketing expenses
decreased by 4% primarily due to lower advertising spending. Staff costs, rental and utilities, and
other operating expenses increased by 8% collectively, largely driven by upward cost pressure in
the labour and property markets.

Depreciation and loss on dispesat of fixed assets fell by 5% to $460 million (2006/07: $482 million)
as certain network equipment became fully depreciated during the year,

Handset subsidy amortisation rose by 3% to $219 million (2006/07: $212 million). With the addition
of handset subsidy capitalised of $280 million (2006/07: $193 million), unamortised handset subsidy
increased by $61 million to $211 million at 30 June 2008 (30 June 2007: $150 million).

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited



Mohile licence fee amortisation increased by 2% to $64 million (2006/07: $63 miilion),
attributable to the full year impact of amartisation relating to the PCS licence renewed
in September 2006,

Finance income decreased by 23% to $77 million (2006/07: $100 million) attributable to
lower average balance of bank deposits and debt securities, and reduced average returns
thereon as a result of significantly lower interest rates. Finance costs, comprised mainly
of accretion expenses for mobile licence fee liabilities, rase by 7% to $84 million (2006/
07: $78 million;.

Macau operations contirued to grow and delivered satisfactory results for the year ended
30 June 2008. Revenues grew by 30% to $281 million (2006/07: $216 million). This
revenue growth exceeded the 16% increase in cost of inventories sold and services

Vodafone Mabile Connect provided, operating expenses, depreciation and amertisation collectively. As a result,
USB Stick operating profit grew by 58% to $121 million {2006/07: $76 million).

Capital structure, liquidity and financial resources

There had been no major changes to the Group's capital structure during the year ended 30 June 2008. The Group was financed by
share capital and internally generated funds during the year under review. The cash resources of the Group remain strong with cash
and bank balances, and investments in held-to-maturity debt securities of $1,677 million at 30 June 2008 (30 June 2007: $2,348
million).

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group's net cash generated from operating activities and interest received amounted to
$1,089 million and $79 million respectively. The Group’s major outflows of funds during the year under review were dividends paid to
the Company's equity holders and payments for purchase of fixed assets, additions of handset subsidies, mobile licence fees and
repurchase of shares.

The direciors are of the opinion that the Group can fund its capital expenditures and working capital requirements for the financial year
ending 30 June 2009 with internal cash resources.

Treasury policy

The Group invests its surplus funds in accordance with a treasury policy approved from time to time by the
board of directors. Surplus funds are placed as bank deposits or invested in investment grade debt securities.
Bank deposits are principally maintained in Hong Kong dollar or United States dollar. Investments in debt
securities are denominated in either Hong Keong dollar or United States dollar, and having a maximum
maturity of three years. The Group's policy is to hold its investments in debt securities until maturity.

As at 30 June 2008 and 2007, the Group's tetal available banking facilities amounted to $100 million and no
amount of the facilities was utilised.

The Group is required to arrange for banks to issue performance bonds and letters of credit on its behalf.
In certain circumstances, the Group will partially or fully collaterafise such instruments by cash deposits to
lower the issuance costs. As at 30 June 2008, the total amount of pledged deposits was $333 million (30
June 2007: $324 million).

Functional currency and foreign exchange exposure

The functional currency of the Group is the Hong Kong dollar. All material revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, except the Group's United States dollar bank deposits and debt securities, are dencminated in
Hong Kong dollar. The Group therefore does not have any significant exposure to foreign currency gains
and losses other than from its United States dollar denominated bank deposits and debt securities. The
Group does not currently undertake any foreign exchange hedging. Vodafone 720
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Contingent liabilities

Performance bonds

Certain banks, on the Group’s behalf, have issued performance bonds to the telecommunications authorities of Hong Kong and Macau
in respect of obligations under licences issued by those authorities. The total amount outstanding at 30 June 2008 under these
performance bends was $454 million (30 June 2007: $404 million).

Lease out, lease back arrangement

A bank, on the Group's behalf, had issued a letter of credit to guarantee the Group’s obligations under a lease out, lease back
arrangement entered into during the year ended 30 June 1999. This letter of credit is fully cash collateralised using surplus cash
deposits. The directors are of the opinion that the risk of the Group being required to make payment under this guarantee is remote.

Employees and share option scheme

The Group had 1,790 fuli-time employees as at 30 June 2008 (30 June 2007: 1,692), with the
majority of them based in Hong Kong. Total staff costs were $430 million for the year ended 30
June 2008 (2006/07: $395 million).

Employees receive a remuneration package consisting of basic salary, bonus and other benefits.
Benus payments are discretionary and depend, inter-alia, on both the Group's performance and
the performance of the individual employee. Benefits include retirement schemes, medical and
dental care insurance. Employees are provided with both internal and external training appropriate
to each individual’s requirements,

The Group has a share option scheme under which the Company may grant options to participants,
including directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year ended
30 June 2008, no share options were granted, 979,000 options were exercised to subscribe for
979,000 shares in the Company, and 388,000 share options were cancelled or lapsed. At 30 June
2008, 9,286,500 share options {30 June 2007: 10,653,500) were outstanding.

Vodafone 8§10
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{Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Directors submit their repert together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is investrment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Results
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 41,

Dividend

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $0.20 per share (2006/07: $0.27 per
share). The proposed final dividend, together with the interim dividend of $0.28 per share paid by the Company during the year (2006/
07: nil}, makes a total dividend for the year of $0.48 per share (2006/Q7: $0.27 per sharel.

Five year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is shown on page 38.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out on pages 47 and 48 respectively.

Distributable reserves
The reserves available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to $3,405,944,000 at 30 June 2008 (30 June

2007: $3,668,997.000).

Donations
During the year, charitable and other donations made by the Group amounted to $148,000 (2006/07: $432,000).

Fixed assets
Details of the movements in fixed assets are shown in note 17 to the financial statemenis.

Share capital
Details of the movernents in share capital of the Campany are shown in note 28 to the financial statements.

Annual Report 200772008
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NnEPOrt or tne virectors

{Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:;

*  Mr. Raymoend Ping-luen Kwok ** Dr. Eric Ka-cheung Li, JP
Chairman
** Mr. Leung-sing Ng, JP
Mr. Douglas Li

Chief Executive Officer ** Mr. Xiang-dong Yang
Mr. Patrick Kai-lung Chan ** Mr. Eric Fock-kin Gan
*  Mr. Michael Yick-kam Wong ** Mr. Peter David Sullivan

{Appointed on 17 April 2008)
*  Mr. Andrew Sing-tak Se
(Resigned on 13 June 2008)

*  Mr. Wing-yui Cheung
* M. David Norman Prince
*  Mr. Wing-chung Yung

*  Mr. Thomas Hon-wah Siu
(Appointed on 15 July 2008)

*  Non-Executive Director
** Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with Bye-law No. 110(A) of the Company's Bye-aws, Massrs. Raymond Ping-luen Kwok, Michael Yick-kam Wong,
Wing-yui Cheung, David Norman Prince and Xiang-dong Yang retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law No. 101, Messrs. Thomas Hen-wah Siu and Peter David Sullivan also retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All remaining Directors shall continue in office.

The term of office of the Non-Executive Directors shall be governed by the provisions of Bye-laws No. 110 and No. 111 of the
Company.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director a written annual confirmation of their independence and is
satisfied with their independence in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited {the “Listing Rules”}.

Directors’ service contracts

Under an employment contract between the Company and Mr. Douglas Li dated 31 May 2001, Mr. Douglas Li has been appointed to
act as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group with effect from 17 July 2001. The contract can be terminated by
the Company by not less than 6 calendar months’ notice {or payment in ligu of notice).

Under an employment contract between the Company and Mr. Patrick Kai-lung Chan dated 1 May 2002, Mr. Patrick Kai-lung Chan has
been appointed to act as Executive Director of the Group with effect from 15 May 2002. The contract can be terminated by the
Company by not less than 6 calendar months’ notice (or payment in lieu of notice).

Apart from the above, none of the Directers has a service contract with the Company with a term of more than 3 years and which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited



Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments payable to the Directors of the Company are based on terms of the respective service contracts, if any. The director’s
fee payable is subject to annual assessment, approval and authorisation by shareholders at annual general meetings. Details of the
emoluments paid and payable to the Directors of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 are shown in note 11 to the
financial statements.

Directors’ interests in contracts of significance

Apart from the connected transactions referred to in this report, no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior management
Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on pages 33 to 37.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests

As at 30 June 2008, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO}, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers” of the Listing Rules, 10 be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares held

Family

Personal interests Corporate Number of

interests  [interests of interests underlying
{held as spouse or ({interests of shares held of
beneficial child contrelled Other under equity shares in
Name of Director owner} under 18)  corporation) interests Total  derivatives Total issue
Raymond Ping-luen Kwok — — — 2,237,787 2,237,781 — 2,237,787 0.39
Douglas Li — — - - — 3,000,000% 3,000,000 0.52
Patrick Kailung Chan — — — — — 1,103,500° 1,103,500 0.19

Notes:

I Mr. Raymond Ping-luen Kwok was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of being a beneficiary of a certain discretionary trust for the
purposes of the SFO.

2 These represented the interests in the underlying shares of the Company in respect of the share options (being regarded for the time being as

unlisted physically settled equity derivatives) granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the section entitled “Share Option
Scheme”,
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Report of the Directors

{Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the associated corporations of the Company

(8}  Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited {“SHKP")

Number of shares held

Family

Personal interests Corporate Number of

interests  [interests of interests underlying
{held as spouse or {interests of shares held % of
beneficial child controlled Other under equity shares in
Name of Director owner} under 18}  corporation) interests Total  derivatives Total issue
Raymond PingHuen Kwak 75,000 — — 1,089,794,895" 1,089,869,395 — 1,089,863,895 4250
Michael Yick-kam Wong 145,904 - - - 145,504 — 145,904 0
Eri¢ Ka-cheung Li — - 18,000 - 18,000 — 18,000 0

Note:

- Of these shares in SHKP, Madam Siu-hing Kwong, Mr. Walter Ping-sheung Kwok, Mr. Thomas Ping-kwong Kwok and Mr. Raymend Ping-
luen Kwok were deemed to be interested in 1,066,617,347 shares by virtue of being beneficiaries of certain discretionary trusts, which

represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these four individuals for the purpose of the SFO.

(b} SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. {*SUNeVision")

Number of shares held
Family

Personal interests Corporate Number of

interests  {interests of interests underlying
{held as spouse or  finterests of shares held % of
beneficial child controlled Other under equity sharesin
Name of Director owner) under 18)  corporation) interests Total  derivatives Total issue
Raymond Ping-uen Kwok - - — 1,742,500} 1,742,500 - 1,742,500 0.08
Michael Yick-kam Wong 100,000 - — - 100,000 - 100,000 0

Note:

T Of these shares in SUNeVision, Madam Siu-hing Kwong, Mr. Walter Ping-sheung Kwok, Mr. Thomas Ping-kwong Kwok and Mr. Raymond
Ping-luen Kwok were deemed to be interested in 1,070,000 shares by virtue of being founder or beneficiaries of a certain discretionary
trust, which represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these four individuals for the purpose of the SFO.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited




{c)  Mr Raymond Ping-luen Kwok had the following interests in shares of the following associated corporations:

Attributable  Attributable % Actual
holding of shares in holding Actual %
through issue through through interests in
Name of associated corporation corporation corporation corporation issued shares
Splendid Kai Limited 2,500 25 1,500 15
Hung Carom Company Limited 25 25 15 15
Tinyau Company Limited 1 50 1" 50
Open Step Limited 8 80 4 40

Note:

. Madam Siu-hing Kwong, Mr. Walter Ping-sheung Kwok, Mr. Thomas Ping-kwong Kwok and Mr. Raymond Ping-uen Kwok were deemed
to be interested in these shares which represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these four individuals for
the purpose of the SFQ. These shares were held by corporations under a certain discretionary trust, in which Madam Siu-hing Kwong, Mr.
Walier Ping-sheung Kwok, Mr. Thomas Ping-kwong Kwok and Mr. Raymond Ping-luen Kwok were deemed 1o be interested by virtue of
being founder or beneficiaries for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at 30 June 2008, none of the Directors and chief executive (including their spouses and children under 18
years of age) and their respective associates had or deemed to have any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations that were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant te section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuani to the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” of the
Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 15 November 2002 {the “Share Option Scheme”}, the
Company may grant options to the participants, including directors and employees of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company,

1.  Principal terms of Share Option Scheme
A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set out below pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules:

fa)  Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward participants who have made a valuable contribution to the growth
of the Group and to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain emplayees who are regarded as valuable to the Group or
are expected io be able to contribute to the business development of the Group.

(b} Participants
Any employee, agent, consultant or representative of the Company or any of the subsidiaries, including any director of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries who has made valuable contribution to the growth of the Group based on his work
experience, industry knowledge, performance, business connecticens or other relevant factors, will be efigible to participate
in the Scheme at the invitation of the Directors.
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{c)

(d)

(e}

(f)

(g)

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The Company can issue options so that the total number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under all the share gption schemes does not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The Company may renew this limit at any time, subject to shareholders’ approval
and the issue of a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided that the number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all cutstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes does not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. At 28 August 2008, the number of shares available for issue in respect
thereof is 55,179,134 shares which represents approximately 8.63% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlerment of each participant

The maximum entitlernent {or any participant is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
optians granted and to be granted in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant does not exceed 1% of the
relevant class of shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option
No option may be exercised later than 10 years after it has been granted and no option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date on which the Scheme is adopted by the Company in general meeting.

The Scheme does not specify any minimum holding period before the option can be exercised but the Board has the
authority to determine the minimum holding pericd when the options are granted.

Payment on acceptance of option

Acceptance of offer to grant an option shall be sent in writing together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant must be received by the Secretary of the Company within 28 days from the
date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The option price per share payable upon the exercise of any option will be determined by the Directors upon the grant of
such option. It will be at least the higher of (i} the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the b business days immediately preceding the day of offer of such option; {ii) the
closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the day of offer of such option, which
must be a business day; and f{iii} the nominal value of a share.

Remaining life of the Scheme
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the adoption of the
Scheme on 15 November 2002.
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2. Movements of share options
Movements of the share options granted to the participants pursuant to the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June

2008 are as follows:

Cutstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled/  Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise at 1 July during the during the Lapsed during at 30 June
Grantee grant price period 2007 year year the year 2008
3
Directors
Douglas Li 10 February 2003 9.29 10 February 2003 to 3,000,000! — — — 3,000,000
16 July 2011
Patrick Kai-iung 10 February 2003 9.20 2 May 2003 10 133,5007 — — — 133,500
Chan 1 May 2012
5 February 2004 9.00 5 February 2005 to 970,000° — — — 970,000
4 February 2014
Employees 5 February 2004 9.00 5 February 2005 to 6,357,000 — {979,000) (388,000} 4,990,000
4 February 2014
1 March 2005 9.05 1 Mareh 2006 to 193,000 — - — 183,000
28 February 2015
Notes:

1. The options, in the original number of 5,000,000, can be exercised up to 20% from 10 February 2003, up to 40% from 17 July 2003, up to 60%

from 17 July 2004, up to 80% from 17 July 2005 and in whole from 17 July 2006.

2 The options, in the original number of 200,000, can be exarcised up to one-third from 2 May 2003, up to two-thirds from 2 May 2004 and in whole

from 2 May 2005.

3 The options can be exercised up to one-third from 8 February 2005, up to two-thirds from 5 February 2006 and in whole from 5 February 2007.

Other than the share options stated above, no share options had been granted by the Company to other participants pursuani 1o the
Share Option Scheme. Save as disclosed above, no other share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
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3. Valuation of share options

No share options was granted for the financial years ended 30 June 2007 and 2008, however, in assessing the value of the share
options granted in prior years, the Black-Scholes option pricing model adjusted for dividends (the "Black-Scholes Model”) was used.
The Black-Scholes Model is one of the generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the value of options and is one of the
recommended option pricing models set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The variables and assumptions adopted in assessing
the value of the share options granted in prior years under the Black-Scholes Model are as follows:

{a) Expected life of the options
The expected iife of the options used in the calculation represents the weighted average expected life of the options as
measured from the date of grant {the "Measurement Date”).

(b}  Risk free interest rate
The risk free interest rate used in the calculation represents the weighted average yield of the relevant Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes corresponding to the expected life of the options as at the Measurement Date.

(c} Expected volatifity
The expected volatility used in the calculation represef\ts the annualised volatility of the closing price of the Company for
the last 12 months from the Measurement Date.

{d} Expected dividend yield
The expected dividend yield used in the caleulation represents the average dividend yield for the two financial years
ended 30 June 2003 and 2004.

No adjustment has been made for possible future forfeiture of the options, The change in accounting policy following the adoption of
the HKFRS 2 resulted in the recognition of the fair value of options granted as staff cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the options expireflapse (when it is released directly to retained profits).

It should be noted that the value of options calculated using the Black-Scholes Model is based on various assumptions and is only an
estimate of the value of share aptions granted. It is possible that the financial benefit accruing to the grantee of an option will be
considerably different from the value determined under the Black-Scholes Model,

Discloseable interests and short positions of shareholders under the SFO
As at 30 June 2008, the long positions of persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, being 5% or more in the
interest in shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were

as follows:

Total number % of shares
Name of shares in issue
Cellular 8 Holdings Limited {"Cellutar 8"} * 318,038,972 55.49%
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited {*"SHKP™) 142 332,206,897 57.96%
HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC”) 3 332,806,708 58.06%
Marathon Asset Management 58,313,896 10.17%
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 34,255,963 5.97%
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Notes:

1. Cellular 8 is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHKP. By virtue of the SFQ, SHKP was deemed to be interested in the 318,038,972
shares in the Company held by Cellular 8.

z 14,167,925 shares in the Company were held by TFS Development Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fourseas
Investmenis Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHKP. By virtue of the SFO, SHKP was therefore also
deemed to be interested in such shares in the Company.

3 For the purposes of the SFQ, the interest of SHKP noted above against its name {and the interest of each of its subsidiaries
noted above) was also attributed to HSBC by reference to the interests in shares which HSBC held (or was deemed to hold) in
SHKP. The number of shares noted above against the name of HSBC therefore duplicated the interest of SHKP.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, no other parties had reqistered as having an interest of 5% or more in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or having short positions as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Arrangement to purchase shares or debentures

Other than the share options as mentioned above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the
Company’s holding company or any subsidiaries of the holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in competing business
None of the Directors of the Company has interest in any business which may compete with the business of the Group.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on the information that is pubticly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of the Company's shares in the market at the date of this report.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares
During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Company repurchased 8,042,000 shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These
repurchased shares were cancelled. Please refer to note 28 of the notes to the financial statements for details of the repurchases.

The aggregate price of the repurchased shares (before expenses) in the amount of $64,249,000 has been charged against the retained
profits and contributed surplus accounts. A sum equivalent to the nominal value of the repurchased shares amounting to $804,000
has been transferred from retained profits to capital redemption reserve.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 30 June 2008 was there any purchase, sale or redemption by the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s shares.

Pre-emptive rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under either the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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Major customers and suppliers
The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to major suppliers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier 11%
Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers 40%

None of the Directors and their associates had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

During the year, the Group sold less than 30% of its total goods and services to its five largest customers.

Connected transactions

1.

Certain related party transactions as disciosed in note 31 to the financial statements also constituted connected transactions.
The following transactions between certain connected persons {(as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been
entered into and/or are continuing for which relevant announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

{fa)l  Certain subsidiaries and asscciated companies of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited {"SHKP"), the controlling shareholder
of the Company, have leased premises to the Group for use as offices, retail shops and warehouses and have granted
licences to the Group for the installation of base stations, antennae and telephone cables on certain premises owned by
them, For the year ended 30 June 2008, rental and licence fees paid and payable to subsidiaries and associated companies
of SHKP totalled $71,507,000.

(b} Sun Hung Kai Properties Insurance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHKP, provided general insurance services to
the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2008, insurance premiums paid and payable were $3,681,000.

The above transactions have been reviewed by the Company's Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered into by the Group in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent
third parties.

The Independent Nen-Executive Directors also confirmed that the transactions were entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whaole.

The auditors of the Company further confirmed that the continuing connected transactions (i) have received the approval of the
Company’s Board of Directors; (i} have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and {iii) have not exceeded the cap for each category disclosed in previous announcement.

At 30 June 2008, the Group had an interest in an associate, the major shareholder of which is a subsidiary of SHKP. The principal
activity of the associate is to invest in an equity fund which primarily invests in technology related companies in the People's
Republic of China,

The above disclosure of the continuing connected transactions of the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited



Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. As recommended by the Audit Commiitee, a resclution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Raymond Ping-luen Kwok
Chairman

Hong Kang, 28 August 2008
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended
30 June 2008, the Company has applied the principles and complied with the requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited {the "Listing Rules”} with the only deviation from code provision A.4.1 in raspect of the service term of non-executive
directors. Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed with specific tarm but they are required to retire from office by
rotation and are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual general meeting at least once in every three years.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

The Board

Roles of Directors
The Beard assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company. The principle roles of the Board are:

. to lay down the Group's objectives, strategies and policies;
. to menitor operating and financial performance; and
. to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operation responsibility to the management under the supervision of the Chief Executive
Officer and various Board committees.

Composition
The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising the management of the Group.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2008, Mr. Peter David Sullivan was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director with
effect from 17 April 2008 and Mr. Andrew Sing-tak So resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect from 13 June 2008.

As at 30 June 2008, the Board comprises 2 Executive Directors, 5 Non-Executive Directers and 5 Independent Nan-Executive Directors.
The presence of 10 Non-Executive Directors, of whom 5 are independent, is considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance
between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Non-Executive Directors who offer diversified expertise and experience, contribute significantly to the important function of
advising management on strategy and policy development. They also serve 1o ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatery reporting as well as to provide adeqguate checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole,

Except for those relationships disclosed in the biographical details of the Directors set cut on pages 33 to 37 of the Annual Report, the
Directors have no other financial, business, family or other materialfrelevant relationships with each other.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director a written annual confirmation of their independence and is
satisfied with their independence in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Company maintains appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors
All Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, are required to retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-
election by sharehelders at annual general meeting once every 3 years.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors, who have served longest on the Board, must retire and be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting. As such, no director has a term of appointment loenger than 3 years. To further enhance
accountability, any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director who has served the Company’s Board for more
than 9 years will be subject to separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting after their appointment, and shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders.

Directors’ duties

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities of the Group. As such,
briefings are provided and organised to ensure that the newly appointed Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and
other duties and responsibilities as Director as well as the business and corporate governance practices of the Group. The Company
Secretary will eontinuously update all Directors on latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In order 1o reinforce their respective independence, accountability and responsibility, and to aveid power being concentrated in any
one individuai, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman of the Group is Mr.
Raymond Ping-luen Kwok and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group is Mr. Douglas Li. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
gstablished and defined by the Board in writing. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board is functioning properly, with
good corporate governance practices and procedures, whilst the Chief Executive Officer, supported by the executive Director and
senior management, is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board process

The Board of Directors meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic means of
cammunication. At least 14 days notice of all board meetings were given to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying board papers were sent to all Directors at least 3 days
prior to the meeting.

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss the overal! strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and
disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational and
financial matters. Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are
kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group's businesses, including relevant rules and regutations.
Directors can also seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.

The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each board meeting in detail by keeping detailed minutes, including al! decisions
by the Board together with cencerns raised and dissenting views expressed {if any), All minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on request by any Director.
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The Board held 4 regular meetings during the financial year ended 30 June 2008. Attendance of the individual Director at Board
meetings held during the year is as follows:

Directors Number of Board meetings attended

Executive Directors
Mr. Douglas Li (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mr. Patrick Kai-lung Chan 44

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Raymond Ping-luen Kwok (Chairman) af4.
Mr. Michae! Yick-kam Wong 3/4
Mr. Andrew Sing-tak So 4/4
Mr. Wing-yui Cheung 3/4
Mr. David Norman Prince 4/4
Mr. Wing-chung Yung 44

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr, Eric Ka-cheung Li ' 0/4
Mr. Leung-sing Ng 2/4
Mr. Xiang-dong Yang 2/4
Mr. Eric Fock-kin Gan 2/4
Mr. Peter David Sullivan 2 111
Notes:

+  Dr. Eric Li did not attend any of the Board meetings held during the year due to confiicts with his overseas business travelling schedules. However,
Dr. Li attended and chaired all Audit Commitiee meetings held during the year {as shown in the section entitled “Audited Committea”).
Z Appointed as Director on 17 Aprif 2008.

Board Committees
The Board has established the following committees with defined terms of referance, which are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the CG Code.

Board Supervisory Committee (the”BSC”")

The Beard has delegated the duties of overseeing management performance, monitoring execution of business plans and initiatives,
and ensuring adherence 1o corporate objectives to the BSC. Members of the BSC are made up of the Chairman of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Executive Director and senior executives of the Company. Non-Executive Directors are welcomed to join the
BSC at their discretion.

The BSC meets regularly throughout the year on a monthly basis to review and monitor the overall strategy implementation as well as
the business cperation and financial performance of the Group and to properly inform the Board of the status of such operations and
performance. BSC mestings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors/members.
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Remuneration Committee

The chairman of the Committee is Dr. Eric Ka-cheung Li, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and other members
are Mr. Leung-sing Ng and Mr. Andrew Sing-tak So {resigned on 13 June 2008). Mr. Wingchung Yung was appointed a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 15 July 2008. The majority of the members of the Remuneration Commitiee are Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy, determining
the remuneration of executive directors and members of senior management of the Group, as well as reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure and other compensation-related issues. The Committee
consults with the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on its proposals and recommendations, and also has access to professional
advice if deemed necessary by the Committee. The Committee is also provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its
duties. The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on request and also accessible on the Company's
website.

No physical meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year ended 30 June 2008, A written resolution was passed
and signed by all members of the Remuneration Committee during the year for approving the annual bonus to senior management.

Remuneration policy for Directors

The primary goal of the remuneration policy for executive directors and senior management is to enable the Company to retain and
motivate executive directors and senior management by linking their compensation with performance as measured against corporate
objectives.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration package for executive directors and senicr management include basic salary,
discretionary bonus and share option. In determining guidelines far each compensation element, the Company will make reference to
market remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.

The remuneration of non-executive directors, mainly comprising directors' fees, is subject to annual assessment with reference to the
market standard. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties
including attendance at Company meetings.

Nomination Committee
The chairman of the Committee is Mr. Eric Fock-kin Gan, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and other members
are Mr. Leung-sing Ng and Mr. David Norman Prince, the majority being Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy, and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of directors and board succession. The Committee will also review the size, structure and composition of the Board.
The Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties. The specific terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on request and also accessible on the Company's website.

No physical meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year ended 30 June 2008, Two written resolutions were
passed and signed by all members of the Nomination Committee during the year for recommending new appointment and re-
appointment of Directors,

The Nomination Committee has reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the retiring Directors for shareholders' approval
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is accountable tc the Board and assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring compliance with
the financial reporting obligations and corporate governance requirements as well as reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control,

The Audit Committee, established in 1999, is currently chaired by Dr. Eric Ka-cheung Li, an Independent Non-Executive Director with
professional accounting expertise, and the other members are Mr. Leung-sing Ng, Mr. Eric Fock-kin Gan and Mr. Michasl Yick-kam
Wong, with the majority being Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Committee members possess appropriate
business or financial expertise and experience to provide relevant advice and recormmendations to the Company.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Group's financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditors’
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position; reviewing the Group's financial control, internal
control and risk management systems; reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices; and recommending the
appointment and remuneration of external auditors. Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific terms of reference,
which is available on request and also accessible on the Company's website, The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the financial year ended 30 June 2008 to review with senior management and the Company's
internal and external auditors the Group’s significant internal controls and financial matters as set out in the Committee’s terms of
reference. The Committee's review covers the audit plans and findings of internal and external auditors, external auditor's independence,
the Group's acceunting principles and practices, listing rules and statutory compliance, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters (including the interim and annual accounts for the Board's approval).

Attendance of the individual Director at Audit Committee meetings held dusing the year is as follows:

Directors Number of meetings attended
Dr. Eric Ka-cheung Li (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Leung-sing Ng 2/2
Mr. Eric Fock-kin Gan 2/2
Mr. Michael Yick-kam Wong 2/2

The Audit Committee also held a meeting on 14 August 2008 and reviewed the relevant financial statements as well as the internal
audit reports of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008. The Committee was satisfied that the accounting policies and methods
of computation adopted by the Group are in accordance with the current best practices in Hong Keng. The Committee found no
unusual items that were omitted from the financial statements and was satisfied with the disclosures of data and explanations shown
in the financial statements. The Committee was also satisfied with the internal control measures adopted by the Group.
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External auditors’ independence
In order to further enhance independent reporting by external auditors, part of the aforementioned meetings was attended only by the
Committee members and external auditors in the absence of the management,

The nature and ratio of annual fees to external auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny by the Audit
Committee. The provision of non-audit services by the external auditors requires prior appreval of Audit Committee so as to ensure
that the independence and objectivity of the external auditors will not be impaired. Details of the fees paid or payable to the auditors
for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 are as follows:

HK$
Total audit fee - interim review and final audit 1,852,000
Other services 588,000
Total fees 2,440,000

The Committee received written confirmation from PricewaterhouseCoopers on their independence and objectivity as required under
Section 290.30 of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants before
commencement of the annual audit of the Group's financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

The Committee is satisfied with the findings of their review of the audit fees, process and effectiveness, independence and objectivity
of PricewaterhouseCoopers and has recommended the Board to propose a resolusion of their re-appointment as the Company’s
external auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities for the accounts

The Board is respensible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance and prospects.
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and of the results
and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis. The Company's accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently and that judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Directors are also responsible
for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

The responsibilities of the auditors for the accounts are set out in the Auditors' Report on pages 39 to 40 of this Annual Report.
internal control
The Directors are responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a comprehensive organisational structure and delegation of authorities, with
responsibilities of each business and operational units clearly defined and authorities assigned to individuals based on experience and
business need.

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition; ensure compliance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable financial information used
within the business or for publication; and to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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A Risk Management Commitiee is set up in early 2007 and is responsibte for the overall risk management functions of the Group. Risk
Management Framework is in place to provide a consistent approach on the risk management processes in identification, assessment,
treatment and reporting of all risks identified affecting key business processes.

Internal audit plays an important rote in the internal control framewaork. The Group has an internal audit team, staffed with 7 qualified
professionals, which is an independent function reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Chief Executive Officer. The work of
internal audit includes financial and operaticns reviews, recurring and surprise audits, fraud investigations and productivity efficiency
and effectiveness reviews. Internal audit derives its annusl audit plan using a risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the business nature of the Group. The plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee, who ensures that adequate resources
are deployed and the plan objectives are adequate to cover major risks affecting the Group. In addition, there is regular dialogue with
the Group’s external auditors so that both are aware of the significant factors which may affect their respective scope of work.

A review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, is conducted annually. The Directors have conducted the review of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system for the year ended 30 June 2008 based on a framework which assesses the
Group's internal contral system against control environmaent, risk management, information and communication, and control and
monitoring activities on all major business and operational processes. The examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and validation
through observation and inspection. Areas of improvement have been identified and appropriate measures have been put in place to
manage the risks. )

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information, a strict prohibition on
unauthorised use of confidential or insider information is included in the code of conduct of the Group. Employees who are privy or
have access to unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group has also been notified on the adoption of the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Senior Management and relevant Employees” by the Company in 2006 and on observing the restrictions
pursuant to Parts X! and XIV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Compliance with Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Group adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Mode! Code”} contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding directors” transactions in the securities of the Company. Simitar
code has alse been adopied for relevant employees, who may be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information, in dealing
with the Company’s securities. Upon specific enguiry, each Director had confirmed that during the year ended 30 June 2008, they had
fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code regarding securities transactions and there was no event of non-
compliance.

Investor relations

To manage its relationship with investment community, the Group meets regularty with the press and financial analysts and participates
frequently in other conferences and presentations. The Company also communicates to its shareholders through announcements and
annual and interim reports. All such reports and announcements can also be accessed via the Company's website. The Directors,
Company Secretary or other appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from shareholders and investment
community promptly.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited
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Directors

Raymond Ping-luen KWOK, Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Raymond Kwok (aged 55), was appointed as Director of the Group in April 1992, He holds a Master of Arts degree in Law from
Cambridge University, a Master degree in Business Administration from Harvard University, an Honorary Doctorate degree in Business
Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong and an Honorary Doctorate degree in Laws from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is Vice-Chairman and Managing Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ["SHKP"), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, Chairman of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. {a subsidiary of SHKP}, a Non-Executive Director of Transpert International
Holdings Limited (an associate of SHKP) and US| Holdings Limited, and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Standard Chartered
Bank {Hong Kong} Limited.

In civic activities, Mr. Kwok is a Director of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kang, a Member of the General Committee
of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a Member of the Hong Kong Port Development Council and Vice-Chairman of the
Council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Douglas LI, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Douglas Li (aged 54}, is Chief Executive CGfficer of the Group, which he helped founded in 1992, He spent the early part of his
career as a Charterad Accountant with KPMG in both London and Hong Kong. He became a corporate finance investment banker with
Morgan Grenfell, following which he joined Sun Hung Kai Properties to expand its telecom and other businesses. He left the Group in
1996 to join the Asia private equity business of the Suez Group as Managing Director. Mr. Li rejcined the Group in 2001.

Patrick Kai-lung CHAN, Executive Director

Mr. Patrick Chan (aged 48), was appointed Director of the Group in October 1996. Mr. Chan was the manager of the Strategic
Development Department of SHKP before his appointment as Executive Director of the Company in March 2002. Prior to joining
SHKP in 1990, he held various positions in the areas of research and investment at leading international banking groups. From
December 1994 to May 1996, he was seconded as a full-time member to the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government. Mr.
Chan has over 20 years' experience in finance, investment, planning and investor relations. Mr. Chan helds a Bachelor of Economics
(Hon.) degree from the University of Sydney, Australia and a Master of Economics degree from the Australian National University.

Michael Yick-kam WONG, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Michael Wong (aged 56}, was appointed Director of the Company in October 2001. He obtained his Bachelor of Business
Administration and Master of Business Administration degrees from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong has been an Executive Director of SHKP since 1996 and is currently respensible for SHKP's strategic planning, corporate
development, infrastructure projects, financial investments and investor relations. Mr. Wong is Deputy Chairman of RoadShow Holdings
Limited, an Executive Director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. and a Non-Executive Director of US| Holdings Limited.

In community service, Mr. Wong is Chairman of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association. He is a member of the Steering Committee
on Promotion of Volunteer Service and 2 member of the Steering Committee on Child Development Fund of the Hong Kong Government.
He is also a member of the Board of Trustees of New Asia College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a member of the
Council of The Cpen University of Hong Keng.
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Wing-yui CHEUNG, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wing-yui Cheung {aged 58}, was appointed Director of the Company in March 2003, Mr. Cheung is a director of a number of other
pubticly listed companies, namely being non-executive director of Tai Sang Land Development Limited, SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.,
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited and Shanghai Real Estate Limited, and being independent non-executive director of Hop Hing
Holdings Limited, Agile Property Holding Limited, Ping An Insurance {Group} Company of China, Limited.

Mr. Cheung was the Vice-Chairman of the Mainland Legal Affairs Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong until January 2006 and
was a director of Po Leung Kuk, He is currently a member of the Board of Review ({Inland Revenue), co-chairman of The Community
Chest Corporate Challenge Organising Committee, a director of the Community Chest, Vice-Chairman of The Open University of Hong
Kong and a fellow member of the Institute of Directors. Mr. Cheung received a Bachelor of Commerce degree in accountancy from
the University of New South Wales, Australia and is a member of the Australian Society of CPAs, Mr. Cheung has been a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1979 and is a consultant of the law firm Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. He was admitted as a solicitor in the United
Kingdem and as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore.

David Norman PRINCE, Non-Executive Director

Mr. David Prince (aged 57), was appointed Director of the Company in July 2005. Mr. Prince has over 15 years’ experience of operating
at board level in an international environment.

He was Group Finance Director of Cable and Wireless ple. until December 2003 and prior to this, spent some 12 years working in the
telecommunications industry in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Asia. From 1994 to 2000 he was Finance Director and latterly Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited and played a key role in developing this business leading to the
sale of the company to PCCW Limited in 2000, He went on to join PCCW Limited as Group Chief Financial Officer primarily focused
on the integration of the companies following the acquisition, and arranging for refinancing of the group. In 2002, he left PCCW to join
Cable and Wireless as Group Finance Director.

Mr. Prince is currently a non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee for Ark Therapeutics plc. — a UK based specialist
healthcare group and a ncn-executive director and member of the audit committee of Adecco SA which is the global leader in human
rescuUrces Services.

Wing-chung YUNG, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wing-chung Yung (aged 61}, was appointed Director of the Company in April 2007, Mr. Yung is the Corporate Advisor of SHKP. He
is also a director of River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company Limited, YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation
Centre Limited, Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited and an alternate director to Mr. Raymond Ping-luen Kwok of
Transport International Holdings Limited. Prior to his joining SHKP in 1885, Mr. Yung had many years of working experience with a U.S.
Bank in various managerial positions in Hong Kong and the United States.

Thomas Hon-wah SIU, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Thomas Siu (aged 55), was appointed Director of the Company in July 2008. Mr. Siu is the Managing Director of Wilson Group
which is a major transport infrastructure services provider in Hong Kong. Wilson Group is a wholly-owned subsidtary of SHKP. Prior 1o
joining Wilson Group, Mr. Siu had more than 25 years experience in telecommunications and |IT sectors. His experience covers
finance, business operations and developrment. Mr. Siu holds a MPhil degree from University of Cambridge and a PhD degree in
Informaticn Systems. He is a Certified Public Accountant and is a member of the British Computer Society.
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Eric Ka-cheung LI, JF, Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Eric Li (aged 55), GBS, OBE, J.P, LLD, DSocSc., B.A., FCPA (Practising), FCA, FCPA {Aust.), FCIS, was appointed Directer of the
Company in October 1986, Dr. Li is the senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants, an independent non-
executive director of Transport International Holdings Limited, Wong’s International {Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited,
China Resources Enterprise Limited, Roadshow Holdings Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. and Meadville Holdings Limited
and a non-executive director of SHKP. Dr. Li is a member of The 11th National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, an advisor to Ministry of Finance on international accounting standards, a convenor cum member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel, a member of the Commission on Strategic Development, a former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong
and Chairman of its Public Accounts Committee. He was also a past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
{formerly Hong Kong Society of Accountants).

Leung-sing NG, JF, Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung-sing Ng (aged 59), was appointed Director of the Company in June 1297. Mr. Ng is a member of the board of MTR
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong and the Vice Chairman of The Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited.

Mr. Ng had been appointed as the Chinese Representative of the Sino-British Land Commission and the trustee of Hong Kong
Government Land Fund from 1988 to 1997. He was the executive director and general manager of The China and South Sea Bank
Limited, Hong Kong from 1990 to 1998. Mr. Ng is a member of the Corparate Contribution Programme Organisation Committee of the
Hong Kong Community Chest since 1992. Moreover, Mr. Ng has been appointed as a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
since 1996. Mr, Ng was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1896 1o 2004.

Mr. Ng has been a director of Bank of China Group Charitable Foundation Limited since 1996, a member of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Advisory Committee since 1898, and a member of Admission of Talents Scheme Selection Committee since 1999. In the
same year, Mr. Ng was a committee member of Hong Kong Council of Social Services, and a member of The Council & The Court of
The Lingnan University. Mr. Ng is alsc a member of Fisheries Development Loan Fund Advisory Committee since 2001, He was also
appointed as the Justice of the Peace in 2001. In 2004, Mr. Ng was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR government.

Xiang-dong YANG, /ndependent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Xiang-dong Yang (aged 43), was appoinied Director of the Company in December 2003.

Mr. Yang has been Managing Director and Co-Head of Carlyle Asia Partners of The Carlyle Group since 2001. Prior to joining Carlyle,
Mr. Yang spent 9 years at Goldman Sachs, where he was a Managing Director, Co-Head of Goldman’s private eguity investment arm
for Asia ex-Japan and a member of its Asia Management Committee.

Mr. Yang serves on the board of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Company Limited and a number of companies in which The Carlyle
Group has investments.

Mr. Yang received his B.A. in economics from Marvard University and M.B.A. from Harvard Business School.
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Eric Fock-kin GAN, Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Eric Gan (aged 45), was appointed Director of the Comparny in December 2005. Mr. Gan is the President and Chief Operating
Officer of EMOBILE Limited, the fourth 3G mobile operator in Japan. During the start-up stage of EMCBILE in 2005, Mr. Gan was the
Representative Director and Chief Financial Officer of EMOBILE when he was responsible for the equity and debt financing of 380
billion yen for EMOBILE after the fourth 3G license was granted in November 2005. Following the completion of the financing project,
EMOBILE has successfully launched the 3G mobile data services on March 2007.

Mr. Gan is alse a co-founder of eAccess Ltd with Dr. Sachio Sermmoto {CEQ of eAccess and EMOBILE). During the first 3 years after
the establishment of eAccess, Mr. Gan served as the Representative Director and Chief Operating Officer from 1999 to 2003. Prior to
the IPO of eAccess, Mr. Gan took up the position of Representative Director and Chief Financial Officer from 2003 to 2007. eAccess
has achieved the listing of the Tokyo Stock Exchange First Section (TSE1} in 2004, the fastest listing on the TSE1 ever in history. Mr.
Gan was also involved in several successfut M&A transactions including the acquisitions of Japan Telecom's ADSL {JDSL) business
and the American On-line {AOL) business in Japan. Today, Mr. Gan still serves as a Director of the Board of eAccess.

Prior to the establishment of eAccess, Mr. Gan worked as a telecom analyst & Managing Director for Goldman Sachs Japan when he
was involved in many telecommunication financing deals in Japan/Asia, including the listing of NTT DoCoMo (one of the world's
largest IPOs), NTT equity tranches and many ather telecom related IPQO and advisary projects.

Mr. Gan was born in Hong Kong and graduated from Imperial Coliege, University of London. Mr. Gan now lives in Japan {since 1990}.

Peter David SULLIVAN, /ndependent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pater Sullivan (aged 60), was appointed Director of the Company in April 2008. Mr. Sullivan graduated from the University of New
South Wales in 1968 with a Bachelor of Science {Physical Education) degree. Mr. Sullivan joined Standard Chartered Bank {Hong Kong}
Limited from September 2004 to December 2007 and served as its executive director and chief executive officer prior to his retirement.
In addition, Mr. Sullivan hetd governance responsibility for franchises of the Standard Chartered Group in Japan, Australia, the Philippines
and Bohai Bank in Tianjin, China. Mr. Sullivan held a number of other major appointments, including acting as the chairman of the Hong
Kong Association of Banks and the British Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Sullivan is currently an independent non-executive director of
Techtrenic Industries Company Limited.
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Members of Operations Committee

Stephen CHAU, Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Stephen Chau is a technalogy veteran in telecommunications with over 20 years’ experience. Prior to joining the Group, he was
with HK Telecom CSL for more than 6 years, responsible for radio network planning and development. From 1995 to 1996, Mr. Chau
was a member of the Radioc Spectrum Advisory Committee under the Office of the Telecommunications Authority. He is currently a
member of the Advisory Committee on Electronic Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the
Institute of Electrical Engineers, UK and the Institute of Engineers, Australia, as well as a Chartered Engineer of Institute of Electrical
Engineers, UK. Mr. Chau holds a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Rita HUI, General Manager, Human Resources

Ms. Rita Hui has more than 20 years’ experience in human resources, agministration and sales operations, as well as logistics gained
from local and multi-national corporations. Ms. Hui is a member of the Education Working Party of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association. Additionally, she has been supporting the Hong Kong Baptist University for their Human Resources Management Mentoring
Programme and she is also a member of the Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board of Vocational Training Council. She
received her Joint Diploma in Personne! Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Keng Management Association.

Alex IP. Chief Executive Officer of SmarTone (Macau)

Dr. Alex Ip has over 20 years' experience in international telecommunications and has been responsible for SmarTone's business in
Macau since 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Ip was responsible for the development of BT (British Telecom)'s Internet and
multimedia businesses and investment strategy in Asia Pacific. Dr. Ip holds a Ph.D. in Data Communications from Loughborough
University in the UK and is a Chartered Engineer. He is also a member of the Institution of Engineering and Technology (IET) and the
Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE).

Chris LAU, Director of Future Services

Mr. Chris Lau has over 20 years' experience in telecommunications products and services development. Before joining the Group in
1992, he had held various product development positions in both mobite and fixed network operators in North America and Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a Chartered Engineer and member of the Institute of Electrical Engineers, UK and Association of Professional
Engineers of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree in Electrical and Electronics Engineering from the Institute of Science
& Technology, University of Manchester, UK and High Diploma of Management Studies from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong.

Eric MALLIA, Director of Marketing

Mr. Maliia joined SmarTone-Vodafone in June 2006 and was appointed Director of Marksting in January 2007. Previously he worked
for Vodafone as Globat Brand Manager. He comes with 20 years strategic and operational marketing experience gained in Asia Pacific,
Europe, Middle East and Africa. Prior to his four years at Vodafone, Eric worked at Cable & Wireless Mobile, Mercury Communications,
BT and a host of client assignments in his capacity as an independent consultant. Eric helds a Bachelor of Sciences (Hons) from
University College, London University.
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Group Finandcial summary

{Expressed in Hong Kong doliars in millions except per share amounts)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Restated) (Restated}
Consolidated profit and loss account ‘
Revenues 4,073 4,039 3,779 3,619 3,367 |
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company 276 158 70 327 452
Earnings per share ($) 0.48 0.27 0.12 0.56 0.77
Dividends
Total dividend 276 649 70 227 309 ‘
Total per share for the year ($) 0.48 0.27 0.12 0.39 0.53 |
Special cash dividend per share {$} Nil 0.85 Nil Nil Nil
\
Consolidated balance sheet \
|
Non-current assets 2,780 2,724 2,848 3,529 3,650
Net current assets 993 1,641 1,351 665 484
Total assets less current liabilities 3,773 4,365 4,199 4,194 4,134
Non-current liabilities {813) (827) {750) {704} 676) i
Minority interests {28) (27} (23) (23} (21}
Net assets 2,932 3.511 3,426 3.467 3,437
Share capital 57 58 58 b8 58 ‘
Reserves 2,875 3,453 3,368 3,409 3,379
Total equity attibutable to equity holders i
of the Company 2,932 3,61 3,426 3,467 3,437
\

Note: The results for sach of the two years ended 30 June 2004 and 200% and the assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2004 and 2005 have been

restated to reflect the effect of the adoption of HKAS 16, HKAS 38 and HKFRS 2 issued by HKICPA.
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BOMKEGTMERAA

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability}

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited {the “Company") and its
subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) set out on pages 41 to 90, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
30 June 2008, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consclidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are respeonsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibitity includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statemenis
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financiat statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other perseon for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financiat statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as wel! as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinicn, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2008 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accerdance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 August 2008
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars}

2008 2007
Note $000 $000
Mobile services 3,432,943 3,146,057
Mebile telephone and accessory sales 640,479 892,865
Revenues 6 4,073,422 4,038,922
Cost of inventories sold and services provided ' (1,324,071} {1,532,748}
Network costs {667,841) (614,831)
Staff costs (429,727) (395,119)
Sales and marketing expenses (269,010) (281,451)
Rental and utilities (154,802) (143,406)
Other operating expenses (140,264) (131,007)
Depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal (743,392) (757,047}
Operating profit 344,315 183,312
Finance income 7 76,603 98,570
Finance costs 8 (83,598) (78,293)
Profit before income tax 9 337.320 204,589
Income tax expense 10(a) (31,342) {27,664}
Profit after income tax 305,978 176,925
Aitributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 275,755 157,563
Minority interests 30,223 19,362
305,978 176,925
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company during the year 15
{expressed in cents per share}
Basic 47.8 271
Diluted 47.8 271
Dividends 16
Interim dividend paid 161,115 —
Final dividend proposed 114,572 156,387
Special cash dividend proposed - 492,329
275,687 648,716

The notes on pages 43 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Lonsoliaatea balance sneet

At 30 June 2008
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note $000 $000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 17 1,846,948 1,832,045
fnterest in an associate 19 1,812 1,812
Financial investments 20 95,823 58,854
Intangible assets <21 780,509 783,925
Deposits and prepayments ~ nen-current portion 22 65,275 47,673
2,780,367 2,724,309
Current assets
Inventories 23 68,401 75,066
Financial investments 20 - 31,340
Trade receivables 22 201,351 179,418
Deposits and prepayments — current portion 22 103,317 82,078
Cther receivables 22 52,708 31,143
Cash and bank balances 24 1,636,501 2,316,455
2,062,278 2,715,500
Current liabilities
Trade payables 25 161,766 154,884
Cther payables and accruals 25 663,110 711,787
Current income tax liabilities 10(c) 64,646 31,612
Customers’ deposits 26,897 31,312
Deferred income 79,788 79,549
Mabile licence fee liabilities — current portion 27 73,500 65,895
1,069,707 1,075,139
Net current assets 992,571 1,640,381
Total assets less current liabilities 3,772,938 4,364,670
Non-current liabilities
Asset retirement obligations 52,687 47,587
Mobile licence fee liabilities — non-current portion 27 656,739 649,809
Deferred income tax liabilities 26 103,960 129,613
Net assets 2,959,552 3,637,661
Capital and reserves
Share capital 28 57,312 58,018
Reserves 2,874,327 3,452,526
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2,931,639 3,610,544
Minority interests 27,913 27,117
Total equity 2,959,552 3,637,661
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen Douglas Li
Director Director
28 August 2008 28 August 2008

The notes on pages 49 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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At 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note $000 000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 18(a} 939,189 939,189
Current assets
Amount due from a subsidiary 18ih} 3,455,962 2,871,756
Prepayments 22 214 161
Other receivables 22 1,669 2,312
Cash and bank balances 24 330,514 322,917
3,788,359 3,197,146
Current liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary 18(c) 1,246,769 403,845
Other payables and accruals 25 2,853 2,251
1,249,622 406,096
Net current assets 2,538,737 2,791,050
Net assets 3,477,926 3,730,239
Capital and reserves
Share capital 28 57,312 58,018
Reserves 3,420,614 3672221
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 3,477,926 3,730.239

Raymond Kwok Ping-luen Douglas Li
Dirsctor Director
28 August 2008 28 August 2008

The notes on pages 49 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Annuat Report 200772008 43



44

Lonsolidated Lasn riow >tatement

For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 337,320 204,589
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 17 450,388 468,728
Amortisation of intangible assets 21 283,654 275,515
Loss on disposal of fixed assets {note below} 9,350 12,804
Finance income (76,603} (99,570}
Finance costs 83,598 78,293
Recognition of share-based payments 21 866
Net exchange loss/lgain) 1,367 (4,817)
1,089,095 936,608
Changes in working capital
Decrease in inventories 6,665 4,506
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, .
prepayments and other receivables (74,789) {34,432)
Increase in trade and other payables, accruals,
customers’ deposits and deferred income 14,778 62,192
Cash generated from operations 1,035,749 968,874
Interest paid (2) 2)
income tax paid (23,961) {27,464)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,011,786 941,408
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of fixed assets (533,857) (391,645}
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets (note below} 705 551
Payment for available-for-sale financial assets 20{a) - (674)
Payment of mobile licerce fees {65,895) {52,407}
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity debt securities 20(b) {40,726) —
Distributions from available-for-sale financial assets 20{a) 12,188 —
Proceeds from held-to-maturity debt securities upon maturity 20(b} 31,340 660,238
Additions of handset subsidies (280,238) (193,428}
Interest received 79,025 96,552
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (797.458) 119,187
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2008 2007
Note $000 §000
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of loan from a minority interest - (9,515)
Payment for repurchase of shares (64,249) (22,082)
Proceeds from shares issued under share option scheme 8,811 248
Increase in pledged bank deposits (8,764) (3.663)
Dividends paid to the Company's equity holders (809,408) (69,935)
Dividends paid to a minority interest (29,427) (6,525}
Net cash used in financing activities {903,037} {111,472}
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {688,709) 949,123
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 1,992,060 1,038,530
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (9) 4,407
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 24 1,303,342 1,992,060
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of fixed assets comprise:
2008 2007
$000 $000
Net book amount of disposed fixed assets (note 17) 10,055 13,365
Loss on disposal of fixed assets {9,350) {12,804}
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 705 551

The notes on pages 48 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidatea >tatement or Lnanges Iin cquity

For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attribuztable to equity holders of the Company

Employee
share-based
Capital compen-
Share Shere  Revaluation redemption  Contributed sation  Exchange  Retained Minority
capital  premium resenve resenve suplus resenve reserve profits Total interests Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $0%0 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Group
A1 Juty 2008 56,279 - - 2690 23112 14,864 m 978327 3425542 22795 3449337
Revaluation surplus of
financial investments - — 17,899 - - - - - 17,899 - 17899
Currency ranshation differences - - - - - — 43 - 43 — 443
Net income recognised
dicectly in equity 58,279 - 17899 2650 20 14,864 Ny 983 3443884 BB 1461619
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 157,563 157,563 19,362 176,925
Total recognised income
and expense for 2007 58279 - 17898 2890 232 14,864 N3 1136830 3601447 43157 364460
Employee share-based
compensation - - - - - 866 - - 866 - 86
Repurchese of shares {264) - - 24 21,818 - - 1264) {22,082} - {22,082}
Issug of shares k| 270 - - - 125) - - 248 - 28
Repayment of loan - - - - - - - - - 18,515 (8515}
Payment of 2007 intesim dividend
to & minority interest - - - - - - - - - {6,525) (6,525)
Payment of 2006 final dividend - - - - - - - (69,9351 169,935) - {89,935)
At 30 June 2007 58018 270 17,899 134 2349294 15,705 N3 1065691 3510544 any 3537661

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited




Attrbutable to equity holders of the Company

Employee
share-based
Capital compert
Share Share  Revaluation redemption Contributed sation  Exchange  Retained Minority
capitd  premium Te5Eve reserve surplys resenve reserve profits Totdl  interests Total
$000 $000 £000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Group
A5 1 July 2007 58,018 bl 17,899 2954 2349294 15,705 T3 1005891 3510544 217 3537661
Revaluation surplus of
financial invesiments — - 8402 — - - - - 8407 - 8,402
Currency translztion differences - - - - — — 1,763 - 1,763 - 1,763
Netincorne recognised
directly in equity 58,018 m 26,301 2054 2349294 15,705 2476 1065691 3,520,709 N7 3547826
Profit for the year - - - - - — - 775,756 275,755 0223 305,978
Total recognised income and
expense for 2008 58,018 m 26,301 28 2349294 15,705 2476 1341446 3796464 57340 3853804
Employee share-based
compensation - - - - - N - - n — 21
Repurchase of shares (804) - - 804 i63,445) - - ig0ar  l64.248) - 64,249)
Issue of shares 98 10,642 - — - 1.929) - - 83811 - 88N
Payragnt of 2007 fina! dividend
to @ minority interest - — - - - - - — - 313 13.113)
Payment of 2008 interim
divigend to a minority intarest - - - - - - - - - (26314 {26,214)
Payment of 2007 final and
special cash dividends — - - -~ - - —~  [648366) (4B 368} —  648,266)
Payment of 2008 interim dividend - - - - - - — 161,042 (161,042 —  {161,042)
At 30 June 2008 571312 10,912 26,30 3758 2205849 13797 2476 531,234 2931639 21813 2,959,552

The notes on pages 49 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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statement oT Changes In EqUIty

For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Capital
Share Share redemption Contributed Retained
capital premium reserve surplus profits Total
$000 $000 $000 £000 $000 $000

Company
At 1 July 2006 58,279 — 2,690 3,110,301 596,985 3,768,255
Profit for the year — — — — 53,753 53,753
Total recognised income and

expense for 2007 58,279 — 2,680  3,110,30% 650,738 3,822,008
Repurchase of shares (264} — 264 {21,818) {264) (22,082)
Issue of shares 3 270 — — {25) 248
Payment of 2006 final dividend — — — — {69,935) (69,935)
At 30 June 2007 58,018 270 2,954 3,088,483 580,514 3,730,239
At 1 July 2007 58,018 270 2954 3,088,483 580,514 3,730,239
Profit for the year — —_ — — 612,633 612,533
Total recognised income and

expense for 2008 58,018 270 2,954 3,088,483 1,193,047 4,342,772
Repurchase of shares (804) - 804 (63,445) {804) (64,249)
Issue of shares 98 10,642 — — (1,929) 8,811
Payment of 2007 final and

special cash dividends — — — — (648,366) {648,366)
Payment of 2008 interim dividend — — — — (161,042) {161,042)
At 30 June 2008 57.312 10,912 3,758 3,025,038 380,906 3,477,926

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda {as amended), the contributed surplus account is distributable to equity holders.

The notes on pages 49 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOtTesS 10 the Lonsollidated rinancial >tatements

For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

General information

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited {the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) is principally
engaged in the provision of mobile services and the sale of mobile telephones and accessories in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its head office and principal place of
business is 31/F, Millennium City 2, 378 Kwun Teng Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"HKSE”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars {HK$000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 28 August 2008.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financiai Reporting
Standards {"HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
invelving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disciosed in note 4.

a  The adoption of new or revised HKFRS
For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group adopted the new standards, amendments to published standards and
interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its operations.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital Disclosure
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure

HK {IFRIC} — INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HK (IFRICY = INT 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The adoption of Amendment to HKAS 1, HKFRS 7, and HK (IFRIC} Interpretation 10 and 11 did not have a material impact
on the Group's financial statements cther than on increase in disclosure. In summary:

. The amendments to HKFRS 7 and complementary amendment to HKAS 1 introduce new disclosures relating to
financial instruments and does not have any impact on the classification and valuaticn of the Group's financial
instruments, or the disclosures relating 1o taxation and trade and other payables.

. HK {IFRIC) ~ INT 10 prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an interim period on goodwill and investment in
equity instruments and in financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. This
standard does not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

. HK (IFRIC} = INT 11 provides guidance on whether share-based transactions involving treasury shares or involving
Group entities should be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment transactions in the
stand-alone accounts of the parent and group companies. The interpretation does not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTEeS 1O Tne Lonsoliadatead rinandcial >tatements

For the year ended 30 June 2008
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of new or revised HKFRS (Continued)

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory
for the Group's accounting policies beginning on or after 1 July 2008 or later periods but which the Group has not early
adopted, are as follows:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements !

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation *
HKAS 23 {Revised) Borrowing Costs !

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 2

HKFRS 2 {Amendment) Share-hased Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations !

HKXFRS 3 {Revised) Business Combination ?

HXFRS 8 Operating Segments '

HKAIFRIC) - INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements ?

HK {IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 4

HKAIFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction ?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009,
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
4 Etfective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.

Except for the following new standards, amendments and interpretations, these new standards, amendments and
interpretations are not relevant to the Group:

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”

HKAS 1 {Revised) requires all ewner changes in equity to be presented in a statement of changes in equity. All comprehensive
income is presented in one statement of comprehensive incame or in two statements (3 separate income statement and
a statement of comprehensive incomel. It requires presenting a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period in a complete set of financial statements when there are retrospective adjustments or
reclassification adjustments. However, it does not change the recognition, measurement or disclosure of specific
transactions and other events required by other HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1 July 2009,

HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing Costs”

The amendment requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a gualifying asset (one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use ar sale) as part of the cost
of that asset. The option of immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS 23
(Revised} from 1 July 2009 but is currently not applicable to the Group as there are no qualifying assets.

HKAS 27 (Revised), "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”™

The amendment requires non-controlling interests (i.e. minority interests) to be presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the parent. Total comprehensive income
must be attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit batance. Changes in a parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of
control are accounted for within equity. When control of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and liabilities and related equity
components of the former subsidiary are derecognised. Any gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary is measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost. The Group will apply HKAS
27 (Revised) from 1 July 2009.

SmarTone Telacommunications Holdings Limited



3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of new or revised HKFRS (Continued)
HKFRS 2 Amendment, “Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations”

The amendment clarifies the definition of “vesting conditions” and specifies the accounting treatment of “cancellations”
by the counterparty to a share-based payment arrangement. Vesting conditions are service conditions {which require a
counterparty to complete a specified period of service} and performance conditions (which require a specified period of
service and specified performance targets to be met) only. All “non-vesting conditions” and vesting conditions that are
market conditions shall be taken into account when estimating the fair value of the equity instruments granted. All
cancellations are accounted for as an acceleration of vesting and the amount that would octherwise have been recognised
over the remainder of the vesting pericd is recognised immediately. The Group will apply HKFRS 2 (Amendment) from 1
Juty 2010 and this standard does not have significant impact on the results of operations of the Group.

HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments”

HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14. The new standard requires a ‘management approach’, under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1 July 2009.
The Group has already commenced on assessment of the impact of this new standard, but is not yet in a position to state
whether this new standard would have a significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Consolidation
The consclidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
30 June.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a sharehglding of more than one half of the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds of the sate and the
Group's share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill or goodwill taken to reserves and which was not
previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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NOtes 10 the Lonsolidated rFinancial >statements

For the vear ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

An associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of hetween 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investment in an associate is stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of the associate are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
{i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of gach of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates {the “Functional Currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong doilars, which is the Company’s Functionai Currency and presentation
currency.

(il ~ Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the Functional Currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consclidated profit and loss account.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security, and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences are recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account, and other changes in ¢arrying amount are recegnised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monesary financial assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

SmarTone Telacommunications Holdings Limited



3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

e

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

i}

Group companies

The results and financia! position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a Functional Currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

a. assets and liabitities for each consolidated balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

b. income and expenses for each consolidated profit and loss account are transfated at average exchange rates
{uniess this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

c. all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken 1o equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Intangible assets
intangible assets are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation {where the estimated
useful lifg is other than indefinite) and impairment losses as described in note 3 (i),

{i)

(i)

Mobile licence fees

A mobile carrier licence, which is a right to establish and maintain a telecommunication network and to provide
mobile services in Mong Kong, is recorded as an intangible asset. Upon the issue of the third generation licence (the
"3G Licence"), renewal of the Global System for Mobile communications licence {the “GSM Licence”) and Personal
Communications Services Licence (the "PCS Licence”) the cost thereot, which is the discounted value of the
minimum annual fees payable over the licence period of 15 years and directly attributable costs of preparing the
asset for its intended use, is recorded together with the related obligations. Amortisation is provided on the straight-
line basis over the remaining licence period from the date when the asset is ready for its intended use.

The difference between the discounted value and the total of the minimum annual fee payments represents the
effective cost of financing and, accordingly, for the period prior to the asset being ready for its intended use, is
capitalised as part of the intangible asset consistent with the policy for borrowing costs as set out in note 3 (0).
Subsequent to the date when the asset is ready for its intended use, such finance costs will be charged to the
consolidated profit and loss account in the year in which they are incuired.

Variable annual payments on top of the minimum annual payments, if any, are recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account as incurred.

Handset subsidies

Handset subsidies provided to customers are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the minimum
enforceabte contractual periods. In the event that a customer terminates the contract prior to the end of the minimum
enforceable contractual period, the unamortised handset subsidies will be written off.
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. Basis of preparation (Continued)

g

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulaied impainment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated profit and loss account
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Network and testing equipment 10% - 50%
Computer, billing and office telephone equipment 20% -331/3%
Other fixed assets 20% - 33 1/3%

The cost of the network comprises assets and equipment of the digital mobile radio telephone network purchased at cost.
Depreciation of each part of the network commences from the date of launch of the relevant services.

No depreciation is provided for any part of the network under construction, including the equipment therein.
Other fixed assets comprise motor vehicles, equipment, furniture and fixtures.
The assets’ carrying values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 3 (i),

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited




3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

h

Leased assets

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Leases of assets under which the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as operating leases.

(i  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or if lower, the present vaiue of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease
periods. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 3 {i).

(il  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation, which are tested at least annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverabte. An impairment loss is recogmised for the amount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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for the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: ioans and receivables, held-to-maturity debt securities,
and available-for-sale financial assets, The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

{i}

(if)

{iii}

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified as “trade and
other receivables” in the consolidated batance sheet (note 3 {I}).

Held-to-maturity debt securities

Held-te-maturity debt securities are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
debt securities are initially recognised at costs on settlement date — the date on which the Group settle the purchase
or sale of assets. If the Group were to seli or reclassify other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity debt
securities, the whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale financial assets. Held-to-maturity
debt securities are included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months from the
balance sheet date, which are classified as current assets.

The Group assess at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of debt securities, a significant or profonged deterioration of credit rating
is considered as an indicator that the held-te-maturity debt securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
held-to-maturity debt securities, the loss (measured as tha difference between the amortised cost and the current
fair value) is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the ather categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Investments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables and held-tc-maturity debt securities are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

SmarTone Telacommunications Heldings Limited



3.

Basis of preparation (Continuved)

Financial assets (Continued)
{iii}  Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The transtkation differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.

When securities classified as availabte-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumutated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated profit and loss account as “gains or losses from investment securities”.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumenits are recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. if the market for a financial asset is not active
{and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation technigues. These include the use of
recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, and option pricing modeis, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financiat assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account) is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
profitand loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account on equity instruments
are not reversed through the conselidated profit and loss account. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described
in note 3 (I},

Inventories

Inventories, comprising handsets and accessories, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cause of business, less
applicable variable selling expense.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
coriginal terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey
or financia! reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account within “other operating expenses”.
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{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

m

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash fiow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group's cash
management are also included. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or optiens are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liahility, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being diractly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for ks intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 15 provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the iemporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

q

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past events, itis
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likefihood that an cutflow will be required in settlement is determined

by considering the class of ohligations as a whaole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with

respect 1o any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits

(i}

{ii}

{iii)

{iv)

Employee leave entitiements

Employae entitiements to annual [eave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability of annual leave arising from services rendered by employees up to the balance shest date.

Employee entitlements to sick teave, maternity or paternity leave and marriage leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes {including Mandatory Provident Funds} for its
employees, the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. The schemes are generally
funded by payments from the relevant Group companies.

Contributions to defined contribution plans, including contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as reqguired under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the consolidated
profit and loss account as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated profit and loss account with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and the share premium when the options are exercised.
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3.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Contingent assets and liabilities
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

A contingent liability is 2 possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
aiso be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the considerations received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of return, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account as follows:

{it  Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generaily
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i  Mobhile services

Revenue from mobile services is measured based on the usage of the Group's telecommunications network and
facilities and is recognised when the services are rendered. Mobile service revenue in respect of standard service
plans bilied in advance is deferred and included under deferred income.

(lit  interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continuous unwinding the discount as interest
income,

{iv) Dividend income

Dividend income is recegnised when the right to receive payment is established.
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the Company is recognised as a liability in the financial statements of the
Group in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity holders of the Company.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or commen significant
influence, Related parties may he individuals or other entities.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seidom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financiai year are discussed below.

a

Useful lives of fixed assets

The fixed assets used in the network are long-lived but may be subject to technical obsolescence. The annual depreciation
charges are sensitive to the estimated economic useful lives the Group allocates to each type of fixed assets. Management
performs annual reviews tc assess the appropriateness of their estimated economic useful lives. Such reviews take into
account the technological changes, prospective ecanomic utilisation and physical condition of the assets concerned. The
useful fives are estimated at the time the purchases are made after considering the future technology changes, business
developments and the Group's strategies. Should there be unexpected adverse changes in the circumstances or events,
the Group assesses the need to shorten the usefut lives and/or make impairment provisions. Indications of these unexpected
adverse changes include declines in projected operating resuits, negative industry or economic trends and rapid
advancement in technology.

Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis, the fair value of fixed assets and obligations which arise from
future reinstatement of leased properties upon end of lease terms. To establish the fair values of the asset retirement
obligations, estimates and judgement are applied in determining these future cash flows and the discount rate. Management
estimates the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as the types of leased properties, probability of
renewal of lease terms and restoraticn costs. The discount rate used is referenced to the Group's historical weighted
average cost of capital.

Impairment of assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group performs an impairment assessment of fixed assets and intangible assets.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing whether {1} an event has
occurred that may affect asset values; {2) the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows from the assets using estimated cash flow projections; and {3) the cash flow is discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumption in the cash flows projections, could significantly affect the
Group's reported financial condition and resuts of operations.
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5.

Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s management and control of financial risks. The major types of financial risk
to which the Group was exposed include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's treasury policy, approved from
time to time by the board of directors, is designed to minimise the Group’s exposure to financial risks. The Group's risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

a Financial risks

(i)

Market risk

The Group's market risk consists of foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk. There has been no
change to the manner in which the Group manages and measures such risks.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations, primarily with respect to
the US dollar, Euro, Macau Pataca and Renminbi. In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the People’s Republic of China. Any
change in the exchange rates of these currencies to Hong Kong dollar will impact the Group's operating results.

Certain of the assets of the Group are principally denominated in US dollar. Hong Kong dollar is pegged to US dollar,
and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The Group currently does not undertake any foreign
currency hedging.

At 30 June 2008, the Group had net financial assets denominated in foreign currencies amounting to $361,970,000
{2007: $1,015,389,000}, of which the net financial assets denominated in the US doilar accounted for 83% {2007:
97%).

At 30 June 2008, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened or strengthened by 1% against the US dollar with all other
variables were held constant, the pre-tax profit of the Group would increase or decrease by $8,539,000 {2007:
$9,878,000,.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the holding of bank deposits. Held-te-maturity debt securities
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group follows a policy which involves close monitoring interest rate movements and entering into new banking
facilities when favourable pricing opportunities arise.

At 30 June 2008, if interest rates had increased or decreased by 100 basis points and all other variables were held
constant, the pre-tax profit of the Group would increase or decrease by $16,365,000 (2007: $23,165,000} mainly as
a result of higher or lower interest income on bank deposits.

The 100 basis point movement represents the management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rate over the period until the next annual reporting date.
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5.

Financial risk management (Continuec)

a

Financial risks (Continued)

{i}

{ii}

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its holding of available-for-sale financial assets. The available-for-sale
financial assets are stated at fair value based on the net asset value per unit of the respective funds as determined
by the managers of the relevant funds. The Group manages its exposure by closely menitoring the price movements
and the change in market conditions that may affect the value of these investments.

At 30 June 2008, if the fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets had increased or decreased by 10% and all
other variables were held constant, the investment revaluation reserve would increase or decrease by $5,506,000
(2007: $5,885,000).

Credit risk

The Group's holding of cash and bank balances, and held-to-maturity debt securities expose the Group to credit risk
of the counterparties. The Group manages its credit risk to non-performance of its counterparties by monitoring
their credit rating and setting approved counterparty limits that are regularly reviewed. In accordance with the
treasury policy, the Group invests its surplus funds by placing deposits with credit worthy banks and financial
institutions or investing in held-to-maturity debt securities of investment grade, with a minimum credit rating of Baa
as rated by Moody's or BBB as rated Standard & Poor's.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. The credit periods granted by the Group to its
customers generally range frem 15 days to 45 days from the date of invoice. The Group does not have a significant
exposure 1o any individual debtor.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting from amount
and maturity mismatches of assets and fiabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required
and monitoring the Group's working capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding requirements could
be met.

The Group maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to ensure the availability of sufficient cash 1o meet any
unexpected and material cash requirements in the normal course of business. In addition, standby credit facilities
are established to provide contingent liquidity support.
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5. Financial risk management (Continued)

a Financial risks (Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk {Continued)

The following table details the contractual maturity of the Group's financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash fiow of financial liabilities based cn the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

1 year 1 year 10 2 years 10 Over
or less 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
$000 $000 $0C0 $000 $000
At 30 June 2008
Trade payables 161,766 - - - 161,766
Other payables and accruals 663,110 - - - 663,110
Mohile licence fee liabilities 76,020 86,144 351,890 791,887 1,305,941
Total 900,896 86,144 351,890 791,887 2,130,817
At 30 June 2007
Trade payables 154,984 — — — 154,984
Other payables and accruals 711,787 — — — 711,787
Mabile licence fee liabilities 65,895 76,020 298,433 931,488 1,371,836
Total 932,666 76,020 298,433 931,488 2,238,607

b  Capital risk management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ahility to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for sharehclders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group defines capital as total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising share capita! and
reserves. The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to ensure optimal capital and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, projected operating
cash flows and projected capital expenditures. The Group adopts a dividend policy, under which the Group distributes
each year 100% of its profit atiributable to equity holders excluding extraordinary items as dividend.

¢ Fair value estimation
The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets are determined based on the latest available
financial information existing at each balance sheet date. The carrying ameunts of financiai assets, trade receivables and
trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited




Segment reporting

More than 90% of the Group's revenues and operating profit was attributable to its mobile communications operations. Accordingly,
no analysis by business segment is included in these financial statements.

Segment information is presented by way of geographical regions as the primary reporting format. An analysis of the Group’s
segment information by geographical segment is set out as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Hong Kong Macau Others Consolidated
$000 $000 $000 $000
Revenues 3,826,516 280,562 (33,656) 4,073,422
Operating profit/Segment result 223,727 120,588 — 344,315
Finance income 76,603
Finance costs (83,598)
Profit before income tax 337,320
Income tax expense {31,342)
Profit after income tax 305,978
Segment assets 4,596,259 148,751 97,635 4,842,645
Segment liabilities {1,682,619) {31,868) {168,606) {1,883,093)
Additions to fixed assets 442,333 32,613 —_— 474,946
Additions to intangible assets 278,736 1,502 - 280,238
Depreciation 427,764 22,624 — 450,388
Amortisation 282,480 1,174 - 283,654
Loss/lgain) on disposal of fixed assets 9,571 (221) - 9,350
Impairment loss of trade receivables 10,523 534 - 11,057
{Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss
of inventaries {1.676) 9 - {1,667}
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6.

SmarTone Telecommunications Heldings Limited

Segment reporting (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2007

Hong Keng Macau Others Consolidated
$C00 $000 3000 $000

Revenues 3,848,779 215,572 (25,429) 4,038,922

Operating profit/Segment resu't 106,566 76,425 321 183,312

Finance income 99,570
Finance costs (78,293}
Profit before income tax 204,589
Income tax expense (27,664}
Profit after income tax 176,925
Segment assets 5,227,723 120,080 92,006 5,439,809
Segment liabilities (1,713,032} {27,891) (161,225} (1,902,148)
Additions to fixed assets 362,940 26,718 e 389,658
Adgditions to intangible assets 258,520 961 — 259,481

Depreciation 451,738 16,990 — 468,728
Amortisation 274,679 836 — 275,515
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 12,767 a7 _— 12,804
Impairment loss of trade receivables 11,251 268 — 11,518
Impairment loss of inventories/

{reversal of impairment !oss) 8,174 {2) — 8,172

Other segment assets consist of interest in an associate and financial investments.

Other segment liabilities consist of current income tax liabilities and deferred income tax liabilities.




Finance income

2008 2007
$000 $000
Interest income from debt securities

Listed 143 1,354
Unlisted - 1,602
143 2,856

Interest income from deposits with banks and
other financial institutions 73,228 94,060
Accretion incorme 3,232 2,654
76,603 99,670

Accretion income represents changes in the rental deposits due to passage of time calculated by applying an effective interest

rate method of allocation to the amount of rental deposits at the beginning of the year.

Finance costs

2008 2007
$000 $000

Accretion expenses
Asset retirement obligations 3,166 1,457
Mobite licence fee liabilities (note 27) 80,430 76,834
Gtiher borrowing costs 2 2
83,598 78,293

Accretion expenses fepresent changes in the asset retirement obligations and mobile licence fee liabilities due to passage of
time calculated by applying an effective interest rate method of allocation to the amount of the liabilities at the beginning of the

year.
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9. Profit before income tax

Profit before income tax is stated after crediting and charging the following:

2008 2007
$000 $000
Cost of inventories sold 623,913 880,731
Amortisation
Handset subsidies 219.271 212,231
Mohile licence fees 64,383 63,284
Depreciation
Owned fixed assets 370,576 389,338
Leased fixed assets 79,812 79,390
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings, transmission sites
and leased lines 611,331 560,166
Auditors’ remuneration 1,480 1,480
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 9,350 12,804
Net exchange gain (1,815) (4,445)
Contributions to defined contribution plans included
in staff costs” (note 13) 22,441 19,412

Net of forfeited contributions of 2,292,000 (2007 $3,403,000).

10. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the tax rates prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

) The amount of income tax expense charged to the consclidated profit and loss account represents:

2008 2007
$000 $000
Current income tax

Hong Kong profits tax 43,138 21,768
Cverseas tax 14,549 9,152

(Overlfunder provision in prior year tax charge
Hong Kong profits tax {692) 124
Deferred income tax {note 26) (25,653} (3,380)
31,342 27,664
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10. Income tax expense (Continued)

b Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at Hong Kong tax rate:

2008 2007
$000 $000
Profit before income tex 337,320 204,589
Notional tax on profit befere income tax, calculated
at Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) 55,658 35,803
Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting from a decrease
in tax rate during the year (7.407) —
Effect of different tax rates in other countries {5.287} (3,948)
Expenses not deductibie for tax purposes 493 72
Income not subject to tax (12,465) (17,785)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset
was recognised 623 66
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (31} (11,015)
{Qver){under provision in prior year {692) 124
Temporary differences not recognised 450 24,347
Income tax expense 31,342 27,664
c Current income tax liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet:
2008 2007
$000 $000
Heng Kong profits tax 44,767 19,235
Overseas tax 19,879 12,377
64,646 31,612
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11. Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

2008 2007
$000 $000

Non-executive directors
Fees 1,320 1,300

Executive directors

Fees 160 160
Salaries and allowances 12,401 11,173
Bonuses 2,226 1,026
Retirement scheme contributions 1,025 895
15,812 13,254
17,132 14,554

During the years ended 30 June 2007 and 2008, no director:

. received any emoluments from Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited {* SHKP”), the ultimate holding company of the Company,
in respect of their services to the Group;

. waived any right to receive emoluments; or
. received any amount as inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

In addition to the above emoluments, directors were granted share options under the Company's share option scheme. The
details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under the section “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note
29.

The emoluments of the directors are within the following bands:

2008 2007

Number Number

of directors of directors

$0 - $1,000,000 11 11
$4,000,001 - $4,500,000 - 1
$4,500,001 — $5,000,000 1 —
$8,500,001 -~ $9,000,000 - 1
$11,000,001 — $11,500,000 1 —
13 13

70 SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited




11. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Details of director’s and past director's emoluments, on a named basis for the year are as follows:

2008 2007
Retirement
Salaries and scheme
fFees allowances Bonuses contributions Total Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Executive Directors
Mr. Douglas Li 80 8,625 1,833 647 11,185 8,865
M. Patrick Chan Kai-lung 80 3,776 393 378 4,627 4,389
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Raymond Kwok Ping-luen 100 - - - 100 100
Mr. Michael Wong Yick-kam 200 - - - 200 200
Mr. Andrew So Sing-tak'" 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. Cheung Wing-yui 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. David Norman Prince 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. Yung Wing-chung @ 80 — - - 80 20
Dr. Eric Li Ka-cheung, JP * 200 - - - 200 200
Mr. Ng Leung-sing, JP * 200 — - - 200 200
Mr. Yang Xiang-dong * 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. Eric Gan Fock-kin * 200 - - — 200 200
Mr. Peter David Sullivan * @ 20 - - - 20 —
Mr. Ernest Lai Ho-kai ¥ — - - - - 60
1,480 12,401 2,226 1,025 17,132 14,554
2007 1,460 11,173 1,026 B95

* Independent Non-Executive Director
M Resigned an 13 June 2008

@ Appointed on 4 April 2007

a Appointed on 17 April 2008

“ Resigned on 4 April 2007
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12. Five highest paid individuals

Of the five highest paid individuals, two (2007: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the other three {2007: three} individuals are as follows:

2008 2007

$000 $000

Salaries and allowances 9,108 7,242
Bonuses 515 765
Retirement scheme contributions 705 653
10,328 8,660

In addition to the above emoluments, the three highest paid individuals were granted share options under the Company’s share
option scheme. The details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under the section “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of
the Directors and note 28.

The emoluments of the three (2007: three) highest paid individuals are within the following bands:

2008 2007

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

$2,000,0071 — $2,500,000 1 2
$3,000,001 - $3,500,000 1 —
$4,000,001 - $4,500,000 - 1
$4,500,001 - $5,000,000 1 _
3 3

13. Employee retirement benefits

The Group participates in two defined contribution retirement schemaes, an Occupationat Retirement Scheme (“ORSO”) and a
Mandatory Pravident Fund Scheme (“"MPF"), for employees (together “the Schemes”). The assets of the Schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds administered independently of the Group's management.

Contributions to the ORSO scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as specified percentages of each employee’s
basic salary. Where employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by the Group. At 30 June 2007 and 2008, all available forfeited
contributions had been utilised by the Group to reduce its contributions payable.

The MPF scheme was established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in December 2000 and
the Group’s employees may elect to join the MPF scheme. Both the Group and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immaediately.
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15.

16.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company inciudes a profit of $612,533,000 (2007: $53,753,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the Group's profit attributable to equity holders of
$275,755,000 {2007: $157,5663,000}.

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 576,920,845 (2007:
582,016,324). The diluted earnings per share is based on 577,410,448 (2007: 582,063,916) shares which is the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of 489,603 (2007: 47,692) shares deemed
to be issued at no consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised.

Dividends
2008 2007
$000 $000
Interim dividend, paid, of 28 cents (2007: nil) per share 161,115 -
Final dividend, proposed, of 2G cents (2007: 27 cents) per share 114,572 156,387
Special cash dividend, proposed, of nil {2007: 85 cents) per share - 492,329
275,687 648,716

At a meeting held on 4 March 2008, the directors declared an interim dividend of 28 cents per share for the year ended 30 June
2008, which was paid on 15 April 2008 and has been reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 30 June
2008.

At a meeting held on 28 August 2008, the directors proposed a final dividend of 20 cents per share. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year ending 30 June 2009.

The proposed final dividend is calculated based on the number of shares in issue at the date of approval of these financial
statements.
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17. Fixed assets

Computer,
billing and
Network office Other Network
Leasehold and testing telephone fixed under
improvements equipment equipment asseis  construction Total
$000 000 $000 $000 $000 $C00

At 30 June 2006
Cost 224,431 4,317,822 558,012 62,207 215,650 5,378,122
Accumulated depreciation {184,142) (2,750,600} (467,544) (51,772} — {3.454,058)
Net book amount 40,289 1,667,222 90,468 10,435 215,650 1,924,064
Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount 40,289 1,667,222 90,468 10,435 215,650 1,924,064
Exchange differences 144 — 162 100 — 406
Additions 28,445 14172 25,425 6,541 315,075 389,658
Reclassifications — 252,318 — —_ (252,318) —
Disposals {(457) (11,860} {52) {26) (960} (13,355)
Depreciation {25,470) {403,502} {35,942) {3.814) — (468,728}
Closing net book amount 42,951 1,418,350 80,061 13,236 277,447 1,832,045
At 30 June 2007
Cost 201,985 4,550,531 564,944 60,362 277,447 5,655,269
Accumuiated depreciation (159,034} (3.132,181) (484,883} (47,126} — (3,823,224}
Net book amount 42,951 1,418,360 80,061 13,236 277,447 1,832,045
Year ended 30 June 2008
Opening net book amount 42,951 1,418,350 80,061 13,236 277,447 1,832,045
Exchange differences 159 - 120 121 — 400
Additions 24,714 24,800 30,972 3.211 391,249 474,946
Reclassifications 86 360,458 - (7) (360,537) -
Disposals (101} {3,500} {59} (76} (6,319) (10,055)
Depreciation (20,984} (386,880) {38,180} {4.394) - {450,388)
Closing net book amount 46,825 1,413,228 72,914 12,141 301,840 1,846,948
At 30 June 2008
Cost 200,246 4,812,989 579,568 57,896 301,840 5,952,539
Accumulated depreciation (153,421) (3,399,761) (506,654) (45,755) - (4,105,591)
Net book amount 46,825 1,413,228 72,914 12,141 301,840 1,846,948

At 30 June 2008, the net book amount of fixed assets held by the Group under finance leases amounted to $124,626,000 (2007:

$204,464,000).
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18. Investments in subsidiaries

a

Investment in subsidiaries

2008 2007
$000 $000
Unlisted shares, at cost 939,189 539,189
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2008 are as follows:
Place of Principal activities and Particulars of Group equity
Name incorporation plece of operation issued share capital interest
SmarTone (BVI) Limited * The British Virgin {slands  Invastment holding and 1,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each  100%
{"BYI") group financing in 8V
SmarTone Mehile Hong Kong Provision of mobile services and 100,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Communications Limited sales of mobile telephones and  of §1 sach
accessories in Hong Keng
SmarTone 3G Limited Hong Kong Provision of 3G mobile serviges 2 ordinary shares of $1 each 100%
in Hong Kong
SmarTone-Comunicagoes Macau Provision of mobile services and 100,000 shares of MOP100 each 12%
Moveis, S.A. sales of mobite telephones and
accessories in Macau
EMEERERF The People's Republic  Provision of customer support  Registered capital of $9,200,060 100%
REERAR of China services and telemarketing
services in Mainland China
*  Subsidiary held directly by the Company.
All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
Amount due from a subsidiary
2008 2007
$000 £000
Amount due from a subsidiary 3,455,962 2,871,756
Amount due to a subsidiary
2008 2007
$000 $000
Amcunt due to a subsidiary 1,246,769 403,845

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are uns'ecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying

amounts approximate fair values.
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19. Interest in an associate

l
| $000 $000
|

2008 2007
$000 $000
Share of net assets - —
Amount due from an associate, less provision 1,812 1,812
1,812 1,812
2008 2007
At 1 July 2006, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2008 1,812 1,812

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the associate at 30 June 2008 are as foilows:

Plzce of incorporation Particulars of
Name and operation Principal activity issued shares hetd Interest held
New Top Finance Limited The British Virgin Islands  Investment hoiding 375 ordinary shares of US$1 each  37.5%

The Group has not disclosed the assets, liabilities, accumulated losses and the unrecognised losses of the associate as the
amounts are immaterial to the Group. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

20. Financial investments

2008 2007
$000 $000
Available-for-sale financial assets (a) 55,068 58,854
Held-to-maturity debt securities (b} 40,755 31,340
95,823 80,194

Less: Held-to-maturity debt securities maturing within one year
of the balance sheet date included under current assets - {31,340}
Total nen-current financial investments 95,823 58,854
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20. Financial investments (Continusd)

a Available-for-sale financial assets

2008 2007

$000 $000
At 1 July 58,854 40,281
Additions - 674
Distributions {12,188) —
Revaluation surplus 8,402 17,829
At 30 June 55,068 58,854

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in US dollars, unlisted and traded on inactive markets and of
private issuers.

The available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value based on the net asset value per unit of the respective funds
as determined by the managers of the reievant funds.

o] Held-to-maturity debt securities

2008 2007

$o000 $000
At 1 July 31,340 692,180
Additions 40,726 —
Amortisation 29 (806)
Redemption upon maturity (31,340} {660,238}
Exchange differences — 204
At 30 June 40,755 31,340

The held-to-maturity debt securities are denominated in US dollars with credit rating of A- as rated by Standard & Poor's
{2007: A,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of held-to-maturity debt securities.
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

During the years ended 30 June 2007 and 2008, no gain or {oss arose on the disposal of held-to-maturity debt securities.

2008 2007
$000 $000
I Proceeds from maturity of securities 31,340 660,238
| Carrying value at dates of redempticn/maturity (31,340) (660,238)

Net realised gain on disposal - —
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21. Intangible assets

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial >tatements

For the year ended 30 June 2008
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Handset Mabhile
subsidies licence fees Total
$000 $000 $000

At 30 June 2006
Cost 345,571 723,049 1,068,620
Accumulated amortisation {177,109) (91,552} {268,661}
Net book amount 168,462 631,497 799,958
Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount 168,462 631,497 799,959
Additions 193,428 66,053 259,481
Amortisation * {212,231) (63,284} {275,515)
Closing net boock amount 149,659 634,266 783,925
At 30 June 2007
Cost 327,482 789,102 1,116,584
Accumulated amortisation {177,823) {154,836} {332,659)
MNet book amount 149,659 634,266 783,925
Year ended 30 June 2008
Opening net book amecunt 149,659 634,266 783,925
Additions 280,238 - 280,238
Amortisation * {219,271) (64,383) {283,654}
Closing net book amount 210,626 569,883 780,509
At 30 June 2008
Cost 387,143 789,102 1,176,245
Accumulated amortisation (176,517} (219,219) (395,736}
Net book amount 210,626 569,883 780,509

* Included handset subsidias written off of $7,898,000 (2007: $4,468,000).
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22. Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 $000 $000 $000

Trade receivables 212,878 192,423 - —
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables {11,527) (13,005) - —
Trade receivables — net 201,351 179,438 - —
Deposits and prepayments 158,592 129,751 214 161
Other receivables 52,708 31,143 1,669 2,312
412,651 340,312 1,883 2,473

Less: deposits and prepayments — non-current portion  (55,275) (47,673) — o
Current partion 357,376 292,639 1,883 2,473

As at 30 June 2008, deposits of $96,878,000 {2007: $83,960,000) were not due and there is no concentration of credit risk with

respect to deposits, as the Group has placed deposits to a large number of debtors.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carryving amount of deposits, trade and other receivables.

The credit periods granted by the Group to its custormners generally range from 15 days to 45 days from the date of invoice. An

ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provisions, is as fallows:

2008 2007

$000 $000

Current to 30 days 171,408 159,635
31 -60 days 21,499 15,304
61 - 90 days 5,339 3,365
Over 90 days 3,105 1,214
201,351 179,418

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has & large number of customers.

The Group has recognised a loss of $11,057,000 (2007: $11,519,000) for the impairment of its trade receivables during the year
ended 30 June 2008. The loss has been included in other operating expenses in the consolidated profit and loss account.

At 30 June 2008, trade receivabies of $42,933,000 (2007: $31,768,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate 10 a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. An ageing analysis of these trade receivables

is as follows:
2008 2007
$000 $000
Within 30 days 34,489 27,189
31 - 60 days 5,339 3,365
Over 60 days 3,105 1,214
42,933 31,768
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NOTeS 1O the Lonsoliaated rinancial -tatements

For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

23.

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2008 2007

$000 $000
At 1 July 13,005 14,241
Impairmeant iess recognised in the consolidated profit and foss account 11,057 11,619
Amounts written off during the year (12,535) {12,755}
At 30 June 11,527 13,005

As of 30 June 2008, trade receivables of $11,527,000 (2007: $13,005,000) were impaired and fully provided. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to independent customers, which are in unexpected difficult economic situations.

Inventories
2008 2007
$000 $000
Mobile telephones and accessories, at cost 82,215 90,547
lLess: provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories (13.814) {15,481}
68,401 75,066

Inventories represent goods held for resale. At 30 June 2008, inventories carried at cost and inventories carried at net realisable
values amounted to $64,594,000 (2007: $67,423,000) and $3,807,000 (2007: $7,643,000) respectively.

The Group reversed $1,667,000 (2007 recognised $8,172,000) of provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories during the
year ended 30 June 2008. The amount reversed has been included in cost of inventories sold in the consolidated profit and ioss
account.
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24. Cash and bank balances

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 $000 $000 $000

Short-term pledged bank deposits 333,159 324,395 328,832 320,068
Cash at bank and in hand 145,342 68,070 1,682 2,849
Short-term bank deposits 1,158,000 1,923,980 - —
Cash and cash equivalents 1,303,342 1,882,060 1,682 2,849
1,636,501 2,316,455 330,514 322,917

Maximum exposure to credit risk 1,632,166 2,310,399 330,514 322,917

At 30 June 2008, cash and bank balances amounting to $834,631,000 are denominated in US dollars (2007: $996,364,000).

There is no conceniration of credit risk with respect to bank bafances, as the Group has placed deposits with a number of
financial institutions.

Of the pledged bank deposits, $226,244,000 (2007: $200,933,000) has been pledged as cash collateral for the Group’s 3G
Licence performance bond as referred to in note 30 - “Commitments and contingent liabilities”.

25. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 $0C0 $000 $000

Trade payabies 161,766 154,984 - —

Other payables and accruals 663,110 711,787 2,853 2,251

Current portion 824,876 866,771 2,853 2,251
An ageing analysis of trade payables is as folfows:

2008 2007

$000 $000

Current to 30 days 93,400 75,656

31 - 60 days 49,912 40,094

61 — 80 days 10,855 9,769

Over 90 days 7.599 29,465

161,766 154,984
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax for the Group's temporary differences arising from operations in Hong Kang and overseas is calculated at
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) and the appropriate current tax rates ruling in the relevant countries respectively.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts determined after

appropriate offsetting, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

2008 2007
$000 $000
Deferred income tax liabilities 103,960 129,613
The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities/(assetis) are as follows:
Deferred income Deferred
tax liabilities in income tax
relation to assets in
accelerated tax relation to tax
allowances losses Total
$000 $000 $000
At 1 July 2006 138,443 (5,450) 132,993
Recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account (note 10 {(a)) (8,830) 5,450 (3,380)
At 30 June 2007 129,613 — 129,613
At 1T July 2007 129,613 — 129,613
Recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account (note 10 (a) {25,653) — (25,653)
At 30 June 2008 103,960 — 103,960

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax penefit

through future taxable profits is probable.

The Group has not recognised deferred income tax assets of $10,997,000 (2007: $11,664,000) in respect of 1ax losses of
$66,651,000 (2007: $66,851,000). The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.
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27. Mobile licence fee liabilities

2008 2007
$000 $000
At 1 July 715,704 625,224
Additions — 66,053
Accretion expenses included in consolidated profit and loss account (note 8) 80,430 76,834
Payment {65,895) (52,407}
At 30 June 730,239 715,704
Less: Mobile licence fee liabilities — current portion (73,500) (65,895)
Non-current portion 656,739 649,809
Analysis of the present value of mobile licence fee liabilities:
2008 2007
$000 $000
Minimum annual fees payable
Within one year 76,020 65,895
After one year but within five years 438,034 374,453
After five years 791,887 931,488
1,305,941 1,371,836
Less: Future finance charges (575,702) (656,132}
Present value of mohile licence fee liabilities 730,239 715,704
Comprising:
Within one year 73,500 65,895
After one year but within five years 314,005 269,447
After five years 342,734 380,362
730,239 715,704
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong doilars)

28. Share capital

Shares of

$0.1 each $000
Authorised
At 1 July 2006, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2008 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fuily paid
At 1 July 2006 582,791,428 58,279
Issue of new shares upen exercise of share options (a) 28,500 3
Repurchase of shares (b} (2,641,000} (264)
At 30 June 2007 580,178,928 58,018
Issue of new shares upen exercise of share options (¢ 979,000 98
Repurchases of shares (d) {8,042,000) (804)
At 30 June 2008 573,115,928 57,312

a During the year ended 30 June 2007, options were exercised to subscribe for 28,500 shares in the Company at a
consideration of $248,000, of which $3,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of $245,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In respect of the options exercised, an amount of $25,000 was reversed from the employee

share-based compensation reserve and credited to the share premium account.

b During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Company repurchased 2,641,000 shares on the HKSE. These repurchased
shares were cancelled prior to 30 June 2007. The total amount paid to acquire these shares of $22,082,000 was deducted

from shareholders’ equity.

Number of shares Price per share Aggregate

Maonth of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
$000

November 2006 $7.45 $7.22 6,224
December 2006 $7.50 $7.50 495
March 2007 $7.78 $7.50 1.069
May 2007 $9.12 $8.88 11,776
June 2007 $9.00 $8.76 2,518
22,082

c During the year ended 30 June 2008, options were exercised to subscribe for 979,000 shares in the Company at a
consideration of $8,811,000, of which $98,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of $8,713,000 was credited
to the share premium account. in respect of the options exercised, an amount of $1,929,000 was reversed from the
employee share-based compensation reserve and credited to the share premium account.
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28. Share capital (Continued)

d During the year ended 30 June 2608, the Cornpany repurchased 8,042,000 shares on the HKSE. Of these repurchased
shares, 7,722,000 were cancelled prior 1o 30 June 2008, The total ameount paid to acquire these shares of $64,249,000
was deducted from shareholders’ equity.

Number of shares Price per share Aggregate

Manth of repurchase repurchased Highest towaest price paid
$000

July 2007 968,500 $9.20 $8.85 8,702
October 2007 1,080,000 $9.48 $9.06 10,091
November 2007 1,916,000 $9.34 $7.24 14,898
December 2007 202,000 $7.29 $7.29 1,473
January 2008 1,570,000 $7.22 $6.95 11,130
March 2008 260,000 $7.38 $7.37 1,917
May 2008 629,000 $8.00 $7.88 4,977
June 2008 1,406,500 $7.91 $7.82 11,061
8,042,000 64,249

29. Share option scheme

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme adopted by the Company, the Company may grant options to the participants,
including directors and employees of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The details of the terms of the share
option scheme are disclosed under the section “Share Option Scheme™ in the Report of the Directors. Below is a summary of
the share options issued.

a Movements in share options

2008 2007
: Number of share options
At 1 July 10,653,500 11,834,500
Exercised (979,000) (28,500)
Cancelled or lapsed (388,000) {1,152,500)
At 30 June 9,286,500 10,653,500
Share options vested at 30 June 9,286,500 10,589,167

The weighted average exercise price of cancelled or lapsed share options during the year was $9.00 {2007: $8.78).
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. Share option scheme (Continued)

b Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance sheet date

2008 2007

Number Number

of share of share

Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price options options
10 February 2003 10 February 2003 to 16 July 2011 $£9.29 3,000,000 3,000,000
10 February 2003 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012 $9.20 133,500 133,500
5 February 2004 5 February 2005 to 4 February 2014 $9.00 5,960,000 7.327,000
1 March 2005 1 March 2006 to 28 February 2015 $9.05 193,000 193,000
9,286,500 10,653,500

c No share options were granted during the years ended 30 June 2007 and 2008. The amount of employee share-based
payment charged to the consolidated profit and loss account for the year was $21,000 {2007; $866,000).

d Details of share options exercised
For the year ended 30 June 2008:

Market value

Number per share at Proceeds

Exercise date of shares Exercise price exercise date received
$000

31 August 2007 117,000 $9.00 $9.81 1,053
26 October 2007 97,000 $9.00 $9.60 873
30 Cctober 2007 100,000 $9.00 $9.55 900
31 October 2007 290,000 $9.00 $9.46 2,610
1 November 2007 175,000 $9.00 $9.45 1,575
5 November 2007 200,000 $9.00 $8.10 1,800
979,000 8,811

The weighted average exercise price during the year was $9.00.
For the year ended 30 June 2007:

Market value

Number per share at Proceeds

Exercise date of shares Exercise price exercise date received
%000

11 April 2007 28,500 $8.70 $9.30 248

The weighted average exercise price during the year was $8.70.
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30. Commitments and contingent liabilities

a Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2008 not provided for in the financial statements were as foliows:

Group

2008 2007
$000 $000

Contracted for
Fixed assets 292,933 53,178
Held-to-maturity debt securities 41,446 —
Equity securities 3,550 3,567
Authorised but not contracted for 420,126 490,333
758,055 547,068

The Company did not have any capital commitments at 30 June 2008 (2007: Nil).

b Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various retail outlets, offices, warehouses, transmission sites and leased lines under non-canceilable

operating lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 June 2008, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Group

2008 2007
$000 $000

L.and and buildings and transmission sites
Within one year 391,131 363,793
After one year but within five years 271,697 245,054
After five years 20,686 27939
683,514 636,786

Leased lines

Within one year 34,505 29,510
After one year but within five years 27,014 19,765
After five years 1,714 2,176
63,233 51,451

The Company did not have any operating lease commitments at 30 June 2008 {2007 Nil).
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30. Commitments and contingent liabilities (Continued)

c

Performance bonds

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $000 $000 $000
Hong Kong 3G Licence 452,487 401,866 452,487 401,865
Other 1,942 1,942 — —
454,429 403,807 452,487 401,865

The performance bonds were issued by certain banks in favour of the Telecommunications Authorities of Hong Kong and
Macau in accordance with various telecommunications licences issued by those authorities to the Group. The banks'
obligations under the perfarmance bonds are guaranteed by the Company and various subsidiaries of the Company.

On 22 October 2007, the sixth anniversary of the issue of the 3G Licence and subsequent to the payment of the sixth year
spectrum utilisation fee of $60,124,000, the performance bond was revised. The revised bond was for $452,487,000 with
a duration of five years.

L ease out, lease back agreements

Under certain tease out, lease back agreements entered into during the year ended 30 June 1999, a subsidiary of the
Company has undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the intermediary lessees to the lessors as agreed at the inception
of the lease for a period of 16 years. The directors are of the opinion that the risk of the subsidiary company being calied
uporn to honour this guarantee is remete and accordingly the directors do not consider that an estimate of the potential
financial effect of these contingencies can practicaily be made.
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31. Related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Cellular 8 Holdings Ltd, which owns 55.49% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 44.51% of the
shares are widely held. The ultimate helding company of the Group is SHKP, a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

a During the year, the Group had significant transactions with certain feflow subsidiaries and associates of SHKP in the
ordinary course of business as set out below. All related party transactions are carried out in accordance with the terms of
the relevant agreements governing the transactions.

2008 2007
$000 $000
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings and transmission sites (i} 71,507 65,401
insurance expense (i) 3,681 3,630

iy  Operating lease rentals for land and buildings and transmission sites

Certain subsidiaries and associated companies of SHKP have leased premises to the Group for use as offices, retail
shops and warehouses and have granted licences to the Group for the installation of base stations, antennag and
telephone cables on certain premises owned by them.

For the year ended 30 June 2008, rental and licence fees paid and payable to subsidiaries and associated companies
of SHKP totalled $71,607,000 {2007 $65,401,000).

{il  Insurance services

Sun Hung Kai Properties Insurance Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of SHKP, provide general insurance services
t0 the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2008, insurance premiums paid and payable were $3,681,000 {2007:
$3,630,000).

b At 30 June 2008, the Group had an interest in an associate, the major shareholder of which is a subsidiary of SHKP. The
principal activity of the associate is to invest in an equity fund which primarily invests in technology related companies in
the People’s Republic of China.

C Key management compensation
For the year ended 30 June
2008 2007
$000 $000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 26,140 23,251
Share-based payments — 348
26,140 23,599
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31. Related party transactions (Continued)

d The trading balances set out below with SHKP and its subsidiaries (the “SHKP Group"} {inciuding buildings and estates

rmanaged by the SHKP Group} are included within the relevant balance sheet items:

2008
$000
Trade receivables {note 22) 381
Deposits and prepayments (note 22} 5,674
Trade payables (note 25) 98
Other payahies and accruals (note 25} 1,875

2007
$000

611
4,407
413
1,769

The trading balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on similar terms to those offered to unrelated parties.

32. Ultimate holding company

The directors consider the ultimate holding company at 30 June 2008 to be Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, a company

incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the main board of HKSE.
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32. RERIRAT

R20086A30R HHFHRFIMEAMERRERATNARKBERLT  RARNINEAIMA Lz AR - HiRD
EEEBIMAERLD -

BABRTMMEAAERLA 90
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1. HEATZRS

AR M Cellular 8 Holdings LimitedfE #ll - R EIHE R R F55.49%M10 BT 4451%RGAHRZEE - &
AEIZBRIERASAFBRERE - —HNEEFHRKRLzAR ¢

a AFEA- - XARSNAEAEETREMBLARAERBEARNELERFERTRETZERRSEINRTX -
RHBBALTZREHRBRERH <R GBHRGETHETT

2008 2007

$000 $000
tTwREFEREBWZEEEEES 0 71,507 65,401
R Gi) 3,681 3,630

(i THREEFREFH-BEHEES

FRESREETHRARNERBELAHEEDETALRE  #FRTR - TEERRAZA - ¥RTEH
FHAFAE  URESHAZE TR TR  REREFEN -

BE2008FE6A30ALERE - AEECHREEMTHEEMEZHBAFRRBER 2 HE MR ER
A& +£A%$71,507,000(2007 : $65,401,000) o

(iy fREBR®

HBEMEPEMNBRAATEEAEFRAR LR - AARMER—KRRKBIRK - BE2008F6H30
BIFEE S REMNZREE&H£5$3.681,000(2007 : $3.630,000) °

b A2008F6A30R - AEMREMERAFAEE  AREANZEIERRATRELEZNBLA - ZBE
DEETEREARERS  MZEASHIEREMNPEARKABRANZBEABRAE -

c IEERARME

BE6A30HLLFE
2008 2007
$000 $000
FoREMENESSRN 26,140 23,251
%45 s A - 348
26,140 23,599

2007/2008 #




c

wRo | R T ¥XOI)X PN AT

BZ2008E6A30R 1L ¥F
(BB THI(E)
30. RBRIAREEHE @
BEHEES
A ZN/N

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 $000 $000 $000

FHEIGHE 452,487 401,865 452,487 401,865

HAh 1,942 1,942 - —

454,429 403,807 452,487 401,865

FTROIXEBERAMZEATERAAEESHSHEEARGER  AZEFPMIBLEORE - TLRR
ZEMBRARCHAMBROTERORIBRT 2 AEELER -

R20078F10A22E - AIEHIGHRBRECRF 2 B - RI I FEFMAE A #I60,124,0001% - AR IELE

T o IEET 2 R 78 £ 2$452,487,000 © FHIREF -

AR - MO wmE

BEETREZ1099F6A30R FFEET 2 M -
o RFEHEABRPAIERBEZ ERAE - SH0

HE e - AT R B L ARBEROENE S
6F - HERAXNMBLAMERLBRER 2B ARH -

WRARLANARBE L BEMBREEELEEAIRERE -

BEERREMARLA

88
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30. RBRIFAEM

a HAXRER

FR2008F6 R30HARMGBRAERB I RNBERARNOT -

REE

2008 2007
$000 $000

BETH
BlE&EE 292,933 53,178
BENHAE (KRR 41,446 —
A% R 5B % 3,550 3,657
EiEEERTN 420,126 490,333
758,055 547,068

7200856 A30H - AR EAEQE R (2007 £) -

b EBEEEAS

AEHATTBHSLERNBAERZETES HOE HE

InAR R S BTAO AR -

F2008%E6 B30 - Frul B HAT BN 2 A RRERSHREENT

B S BAR - ZEFHERATRER -

NEE

2008 2007
$000 $000

T T AR
146 R 391,131 363,793
1FEERERA 271,697 245,054
5 1& 20,686 27,939
683.514 636,786

#Hig

15 R 34,505 29,510
1EBBRETFR 27,014 19,765
541k 1,714 2,176
63,233 51,451

200846 A 308 - A 2 F] 3 & 6] 48 £ 18 49 2 A H5 (2007

2007/ 2008 T W

=) -




7 N = 2 d

29. MEAREERTE) ()

20 HX 14X Pl rL

20086 A30H IFF/E
(L8 TFE)
b WEEBERDIHE R M ARTE 2 BEEZ RN

2008 2007
i E A T EAR TfEE BENE FER% S H
2003F2H10H 2003F2H10BE2011%E7E16H $9.29 3,000,000 3,000,000
2003F2 A 10H 20035 FE28E201245H 1R $9.20 133,500 133,500
2004% 2 A5H 2005F2 E5A 201482 H48 $9.00 5,960,000 7,327,000
20054 3A1H 2006F 3R 1HE201552H288 $9.05 193,000 193,000
9,286,500 10,653,500

¢  EBZE2007FR2008E6A308 I EEHESHERE - AFECH AGRERERANZRM I 2 MEHS$21,000

(2007: $866,000) °

d CEfIECBERESS

HE200856 30 1L FE ¢
AT B
IT{E 5 B8 i rak gE! TERB ZERmE ER8 IR
$000
2007488318 117,000 $9.00 £9.81 1,053
2007 10R26E 97,000 $9.00 $9.60 873
2007108308 100,000 $9.00 $9.55 800
20074108318 290,000 $9.00 $9.46 2,610
200711818 175.000 $9.00 $9.45 1,675
200711 B6H 200,000 $9.00 $8.10 1,800
979,000 8,811
FERZIEFEETEEE$9.00¢
HE2007%E6A30B LEE ¢
RiTEES
TEEHE AE{n B FTER ZEBRMHE BIREEI]
$000
20074118 28,500 $8.70 $9.30 248

FAZMEFHTEHERSSTO-

WERTAREFRRELA

86
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28. B&* (&)

d WEZE200856A30BLFE  ANBREEEXAEES 042000885 - ZEFEBEKMF - 7,722,000 2
200856308 Z AIETHH - OISR AT 2 25$64,249,000B R P -

HRER

ez Rfn BEEn#®E = b33 iy BEfRER
$000

200757 H 968,500 $9.20 $8.85 8,702
2007108 1,080,000 $9.48 $9.06 10,091
200711 H 1,916,000 $9.34 $7.24 14,898
200712 R 202,000 $7.29 $7.29 1,473
20081 H 1,570,000 $7.22 $6.95 11,130
200843 H 260,000 $7.38 $7.37 1,917
2008%5 8 629,000 $8.00 $7 .88 4,977
200896 A 1,406,500 $7.91 $7.82 11,081
8,042,000 64,249

29, BRRHETE

BRERRTDHRFRBREFBZGER FRFATNMEFLEAZ (BETEBEERER) BREURBE LR ZE
13- BAEF B2 RRABREFTEREEERET S — K% - ERTRBERALT -

a HBEEZEEH

2008 2007
FARR S E
»7A18 10,653,500 11,834,500
BEi7{E (979,000) {28,500)
AR = A {388,000) {1,152,500)
e H30R 9,286,500 10,653,500
PEANBEFSRBGE BAE 9,286,500 10,589,167

FAEFHREA 2 BIEZ NEFIHITEER$9.00 (2007:$8.79) ¢

2007/ 2008 F &




wrm A% Y AR Pl oax

#E2008%68308 1 EF
(54T RiE)
28. &
HlEmE
SOz R (E $000
EE
¥20065E7H18 » 20075E6 A30H R20085£6H308 1,000,000,000 100,000
BRITEAR
H2008F7H18 582,791,428 58,279
B 17 (5 BE RS 4 T 38 T ET AR (a) 28,500 3
R S B 19 (b) (2,641,000) (264
%2007FE6 308 580,178,928 58,018
BiTEEREmRITH R 979,000 a8
B [ A% {5 (d) {8,042,000) {804)
200856 A308 573,115,928 57,312

a REE2007F6A308 L EF - 7 MATERE A D 28,5005 - KA A$248,000 - H+$3,0005+ Al
A - A $£$245,0005t ARG MR - AR TEBAVERMSE - $25,0000 8 R B & R & R AR

i BRERk -

b REZ2007F56A308ILEE ARTRE BB THAEE2641,0008 (5 - ZFWE R H200756H308

ZRBEAREEH - BB ERM AT 2 488$22,082, 0002 L BRHE &8 A H0RR -

HE2 ARG i JEREE T E A e BE i&IE B EERE
$000

2006711 B 847,500 $7.45 $7.22 6,224
2006412 66,000 $7.50 $7.50 495
200743 A 139,500 $7.78 $7.50 1,069
20075 H 1,305,000 $9.12 $3.88 11,776
20076 A 283,000 $9.00 $8.76 2,518
2,641,000 22,082

¢ REZE2008F6A308 I FE - 1TEMA MR AR A R)979,0000 B {5 - L8 A$8,811,000 - H+$98,0005+
AREA - H£2$8,713,0005 AR H TR - METEBAEREAE © $1,929,00068 5 M EHPRENE

5T AR5 2 TR

REATRMREAERLA

84




27. REARBERBE]R

2008 2007
$000 $000
Mm7A18 715,704 625,224
B - 66,053
TAESEER BRERAY (s 80,430 76,834
3k {65,895) (52,407
6H30H 730,239 715,704
BORFBNBREEREEE—NHES {73.,500) (65,895)
JERNERER & 656,739 649,809
REMBAREEEEAE BESHOT
2008 2007
$000 $000
B REER
1R 76.020 65,895
1F{E{BRFN 438,034 374,453
5F & 791,887 931,488
1,305,941 1,371,836
H:AXREERR (575,702) {656,132)
mBBARSREERRCEE 730,239 715,704
B
1R 73,500 65,895
152 {BREERN 314,005 269,447
GEE 342,734 380,362
730,239 715,704

83  2007/2008 54§



7 N I B - B £V G & G o i -

B E2008%6H30A 1+ FE
(548 T FilE)

26. REFHH

AEERNES RS EBEL Y BREE Y EIEAMEH S IR E16.5% (2007 : 17.5%) BE WERRT &M B
FEH -

EEATUHTRNERARBEESRARBAGEN  BETRESHSLE MBS - A SREREHE
ERAHETHER RESEERERANLZEEEEHBEEZSEO

2008 2007
$000 $000
BEFEBHaRE 103,960 129,613
EICEHBHEeRs,/ (EE)ZEEHNT :
AR E HEEE
HEL R T BiEzRLE
Frisi 8 E FRBiEE WA
$000 $000 $000
H2006FE7816 138,443 {5,450) 132,993
PiEaRAERER a0 @) (8,830) 5,450 {3,380)
20076 H30H 129,613 — 129,613
M2007% 7818 129,613 — 129,613
W& ERRER (B0 @) {25,653 — {25,653)
200868308 103,960 - 103,960

REGRBEERMHR 2 EEMEHEEERNEMZBAEMNATTERRRERABBENRR 2H7 -

7N 4 W) 3 1 gk A BE A A E5 38 $66,651,000(2007 : $66,651,000) MRBEEMEBEAES10,997,000(2007 -
$11,664,000) - RERTHBEG  ZESHEBEL R2H -

pEATAAmERAE 82



24, BERBITES

TEH AR A

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 3000 $000 $000

HHDEMBITER 333,159 324,395 328,832 320,068
ROTFERRRS 145,342 68,070 1.682 2,848
HERITER 1,158,000 1,923,990 - —
BeRhBHEEFEY 1,303,342 1,992,080 1.682 2,849
1,636,501 2,316,455 330,514 322,917

#EEHRABzE=SEH 1,632,166 2,310,399 330,514 322.917

F200856 A30F - B& RETHF$834,691,000T5 LA ZE L HIE(2007:$996,364,000) »
HRAEB TR DOHRZESHEE  RETTETAB2EERBY TES -

BEHEITTRE - $226,244,000(2007 : $200,933,000) CEBFEAFREEGHBEBNRE 7 H S EIB S GOkt
EXOES e

25 BABERAMEARIE

big 411 AR

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 $000 $000 $000

FEFEEER 161,766 154,984 - —

HMEMREAEEREZE 663,110 711,787 2,853 2,251

B R 36 53 824,876 866,771 2,853 2,251
BEAEXERZERBSFNT

2008 2007

$000 $000

WFE3I0K 93,400 75,656

31EB0R 49,912 40,094

ESNES 10,855 9,769

907 LA I 7,599 29,465

161,766 154,984

81 2007/ 2008 £ 8§




22,

23.

wr|m A T A AR PN R

B E2008E6R30R 1L FE
(L4 T FYE)
RELERHARIKRIE (&)
EWERXZE BAERERHET -
2008 2007
$000 $000
®W7A18 13,005 14,241
PEEBELXTEREZRESE 11,057 11,519
RNTAMBEZEH {12,535) (12,755)
6 A30H 11,527 13,005

B2008FE6 A30H - FEI AR HITE11,6527,000 (2007:$13,005,000)E B ME Y C 2 EEHERE - ARENIE
BREERRAEIEHBTESAN  SEFEERTERZTAERBERLS -

B
2008 2007
$000 $000
FEEEREY - EREE 82,215 Q0,547
o REHRBERTFE S {13,814) {15,481)
68,401 75,066

FEERESERRYES - N2008F6H30E « FE 7 RE & EHFED 5 5%$64,594,000(2007 : $67,423,000)
%$3,807,000(2007 : $7,643,000) -

AEBNEE 2008564308 HEE RO ERBETFE 2 BH$1,667,000(2007 - #38$8,172,000) - B @2
SHEAEEEABNARDEEEEREN -

EEACMEMERLS

80




22 BB ERRGREKSE

ANEE AR a]

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000 $000 $000 $000

il 212,878 192,423 - —
o EWREERCRERE (11,527) {13,005) - —
FElEREER—F8 201,351 179,418 - —
Be&REMHE 158,592 129,751 214 161
H b pE 78 52,708 31,143 1,669 2,312
412,651 340,312 1,883 2,473

B EeRENRE-FEABES (55,275} {47,673) — -
BRHEAER 4y 357,376 292,639 1,883 2,473

F2008E6 A30H - £ $96,878,000 (2007: $83.960,0001 4 F|H - ER T LMz EE SNBSS HEHT -
AhEesFlrEERBY T HEg -

e BUESENHAEUAAREGANRRREZEREARZEAEBAHKENE -
AEE-RETEFPABEBEREANTTI5AEABRTEFLRES - IRBHERIBEREERIXEHESFET -

2008 2007

$000 $000

BEEI0K 171,408 159,535
31ZEB0K 21,499 15,304
81Z00F% 5,339 3,365
90X B L 3.105 1,214
201,351 179,418

HRATEREAARES  AHEBREEERZCHRRY THES -

HREZE2008F6A30HIL4F ' A EECHAZRWEEERRBRBA$11,057,000 (2007 : $11,519,000) ° 3%
FEERREEGSBERAHERERITA -

F20085F6 A 308 - MEW B R IAS42,933,000 (2007: $31,768,000) 2 - B REE - ERETHITFEHY
UEENLEEN - HEFRBEEFRZRBESTOT -

2008 2007

$000 %000

30X AR 34,489 27,189
31E60XK 5,339 3,365
60XLAE 3,105 1,214
42,933 31,768

79  2007/2008 €8




1 N = +HX 14X PN AL
BT 2008665308 1 FIF
(BB T HIE)
21. BB E
mENEA

FHE AL REHEEE 1%
$000 $000 $000

200656 H308
iy 345,671 723,049 1,068,620
RTHEH {177,109 {91,552) (268,661)
RHEZE 168,462 631,497 799,959

EF2007F6F30HLFE

EMEEFE 168,462 631,497 799,959
TE 193,428 66,053 259,481
Tl {212,231) (63,284) {275,515)
FEFREMEE 149,659 634,266 783,925

#2007FE6H30R
R 327,482 789,102 1,116,584
P (177,823) (154,836) (332,659
BRTH FE 149,659 634,266 783,925

BE20085E6A30HIEER

FEEEE 149,659 634,266 783,925
RE 280,238 - 280,238
i i {219,271) (64,383) {283,654)
FEXRE®EFE 210,626 569,883 780,509

¥ 20085E6R 308
RE 387,143 789,102 1,176,245
REt e (176,517) {219,219) {395,736)
RERE 210,626 569,883 780,509

»*

BECRE S F#HE$7,8968,000(2007 ¢

$4,469,000) »

BEARMEMARLE

78
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20. &@RME @

AP EEREE

2008 2007

$000 $000
»7H18 58,854 40,281
RE - 874
Sk [12,188) —
B{EEH 8,402 17.899
R6H30F 55,068 58,854
AEHESHEENUETIE - £ LTERTEET S LERAARRLARIT
At EeREE BB aHESEENT SRS EEVAERBENRTERY -
EENSArBEHEES

2008 2007

$000 $000
W7A18 31,340 692,180
B 40,726 —
) 29 {806)
P E| AR BT E {31,340) {660,238
EEH =W — 204
#eB30A8 40,755 31,340
BB s EREHETIAETIE  HiZEEBEETRRAA- (2007:A) ¢
BEIHErAGESRERENRELCEARZ BT AHLKREME -
FEEEEQTEAR -
HEZE2007FE2008F6 A30HLFE - HEREINHAZBHEHF L EHBEE -

2008 2007

$000 $000
BB RS 2 2E 31,340 660,238
HEE/ 8B ZERIE (31,340 {660,238)

2 R -

2007/ 2008 5 #




17 =TS B s B VG & o b -

HEZ2008F6 8308 1L FF
(L4 8 T 3 {E)
19. REBIBATIZH#EDR
2008 2007
$000 $000
SEAEFE - —
fElk — B AS DT FRIE - BB 1,812 1,812
1.812 1,812
2008 2007
$000 $000
¥20065E7H 18 » 200756 A30H R 2008568308 1,812 1,812
B —HBELAFEAENR 28 REETFTERY -
M2008E6A30B ZHEDAFEENT
S B HECES
NCTEY E S FEEK B i 2 18 REED
New Top Finance Limited ~ ZEBEZHE BHEER 375R8 iR AR 37.5%
EREMEIER

MREBEARNZAR AR RHEARAEZSEZSTEHASEYTER  YARBEREERSLW - &
= 592 BRI A MR 2 FEEE -

20. &R E

2008 2007
$000 $000
At EsREE(a) 55,068 58,854
#BEDHHEHZ HBEH(b) 40,755 31,340
95,823 90,194

B OREHERMERIEZEERERY
MHaEH (TS EEAN) - (31,340
IEREERIEE BT 95,823 58,854

REBRTIMEENERLA 76




18. KRB AT 2fE

a

RHBLAT21RE
2008 2007
$000 $000
JELETRGZIRERE 939,189 939,189
20086 AZOAZETEMB LRI EENT ¢
R TEEBR B BT TEE
NI+ B 3L 25 BT WA EHE Bk
SmarTone {BV)) HEELBE 4GHHBRELBRERE 1,0008% & A 100%
Limited * REEREEERE BREEIER
HEREHM FE EEERMREER 100,000,0005% 100%
BRAAE R REEReES 38 A
REMH FREESS
SmarTone 36 BB EERREIGE 2R AR 100%
Limited BATERK FREBES
HERNHER b | FEMEARBEA 100,0008% A% 17 72%
(B RHERLR B¥BHERBTE EREERME
REH 1007T
BEMEERAEF hE AR EPEABREEERE TEE 100%
R%EFRAE HFE ME# R EEE R $9,200,000
* HELAEEREZHB LA -
titrrEM B AR EEREEQR] -
PR —FE M B 2R 2 FE
2008 2007
$000 $000
FEW— MBS R %8 3,455,962 2,871,756
A —EH B L R 2 I8
2008 2007
$000 $000
R —EMBLE 278 1,246,769 403,845

B/ EAMBASZRESEES £ENEBETEMNE -

2007/ 2008 £ 8

ZERAZEEEREAATEES -




wn ‘= Rl Tr X AR Pl AT

HE2008F6H30H L FE
(L8 TP1E)
17. BEEE
B B8
i BER EMOE Hit
MERE BAEE BERE EEEE EgAR peck i}
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
20066308
[ 224,431 4,317,822 558,012 62,207 215,650 5,378,122
Rt (184,142} (2,750,600} (467.544) {51,772 —  (3,454,058)
REFE 40,289 1,567,222 90,468 10,435 215,650 1,924,064
BE2007F6A30B L FE
FEPEmMFE 40,289 1,567,222 90,468 10,435 215,650 1,924,064
EEER 144 - 162 100 — 408
RE 28,445 14,172 25,425 6,541 315,075 389,658
EFORR _ 252,318 — — (252,318) —
HE (457) (11,860) {52) {26) (960) {13,355)
il {25,470) {403,502) (35,942) (3,814) — (468,728)
EREEFE 42,951 1,418,350 80,061 13,236 277,447 1,832,045
72007468309
g 201,985 4,550,531 564,944 60,362 277,447 5,655,269
AftrE {159,034)  (3,132,181) (484,883} (47,126) —  (3,823,224)
EmAHE 42,951 1,418,350 80,061 13,236 277,447 1,832,045
EE20085E6A308 1L EH
FYIEERE 42,951 1,418,350 80,061 13,236 277,447 1,832,045
BRERE 159 - 120 121 - 400
"B 24,14 24,800 30,972 3,211 391,249 474,946
EFNOH 86 360,458 - {7) {360,537) -
= {101) {3.500) {59) {76) (6,319) (10,055)
& (20,984} (386,880) (38,180) {4,344) - {450,388)
FEXREOFE 46,825 1,413,228 72,914 12,141 301,840 1,845,948
% 200864308
5. 3 200,246 4,812,989 579,568 57,896 301,840 5,952,539
RithE (153,421}  {3,399,761) {506,654) (45,755) - {4,105,591)
FRE R {E 46,825 1,413,228 72,914 12,141 301,840 1,846,948

H2008%6A308 ZRMAMUREHARAZATEEREPBEARS24,626,000(2007 ¢ $204,464,000) -

BEATMERFRRAA
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14.

15.

16.

FaalRREIEEH

ALRRREESABNEE-FEHNATARM B KK $612,533,000 (2007 : $53,753,000) -

shREH

SRERLEHRFEREREMZ R EEGEF$275,755,000(2007  $157,563,000) 515 -
SHRENRFBEREFHNDBITRG 2 METHH576,920,8454% (2007 - 582,016,324R%) 5+ & - TRE AR TS

M #577,410,4481% (2007 : 582,063,916/t & - LB TNEEERACEAROZMETSE - RO EERE
REBHTEREEABUEREFRITRG Z NETHH489,6030% (2007 : 47,59288) 58 -

RE
2008 2007
$000 $000
AT ERRG B - BAR28#E L (2007 Ol 161,115 —
REAHEARS - SAE206#10 (2007 @ 27380 114,572 156,387
EIESRE SRS - |0 (2007 : 85 ) - 492,329
275,687 648,716

HR2008FIHAARITZ ®E L -  HESRBE2008E6 8308 LEE ARSI 28:5M - S0 5272008
F4R15B R - W EEHE £ 2008F6 8308 L EFEZREHFISIE »

R2008F8R28ART B L BERBETRBRETR20EM - LHEEERREY BRZSHBREAT AR
FRE  ERFERZE2009F6 H0E ELFEZRBEFSIE -

BERAREIREA ATV BRI BEHE IR TRGEAHE -

2007/ 2008 F£ %




12.

13.

SERBHAL

IS

| A 15 H A< PN |

HE2008F6 308 it FE

(HETE)

BREEEALT - 282007 : 28) %S  EFSDRNME11EE - H%3%7 (2007 : 38) AT zMemsmmT ¢

2008 7007

$000 $000

e RER 9,108 7,242
14T 515 765
RR S8R 705 653
10,328 8,660

BIALBES  FOFEESATERESBAIZEEFA LR LB - ZFEYRENZFEENESREE

MEERRAE &) — s R B cX 20 R ER -

3E (2007 3B ) EEHFATZEMoAEENT

2008 2007
BEAB EEAH

$2,000,001 - $2,500,000 1 2
$3,000,001 - $3,500,000 1 —
$4,000,001 - $4,500,000 - 1
$4,500,001 - $5,000,000 1 —
3 3

BB KER

FEHARERBSERERTHNEHMIE - EBEERGSIRBIMEOREHB (RS (RAE
BWAEEHE)D  ASHBCAERAEE2EEDSRARE  YHBUINRTREER ZESDRIRE °

AEERESOBERKEEL ZER DREREEFRIEETALLE - BRI 2 BIRAUR X HIATEER
MR 2 3% - A A A B AN S B 7 FE AN 3K - 7020074 R 2008F 6 A30A @ FTARKRE R KRBT ERFICK

ZEF - CANEHASREZ BHHER -

WHASH BTN 2000F 12 ARBEARHE LR BKRARY 2ARBLREATRESMER S TH - XEH
PREREBAREEBABAFZZ% A BT - S ERRZ AF LERS20,000 - FH—E M TRBEE - B2E

‘RAA -

UHEARMBEAERLE
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1. EEME &

FEZRERMIES ZHEFENT G2 -

2008 2007
B

WwWE H:RER TE&L BT SR k] ki)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BITHEE
gmAaks 80 8,625 1,833 647 11,185 8,865
A RE 80 3,776 393 378 4,627 4,389
FEHITRE
FRAR M 100 - - — 100 100
HnES s 200 — - — 200 200
BRI AN 80 - - - 80 80
AL 80 - - - 80 80
ERiEAL 80 - - — 80 80
Bk hkg 80 - - - 80 20
FREED - KEHT 200 - - - 200 200
REBRES o KEL 200 - — - 200 200
BREELE 80 - - - 80 80
ERfgidca 200 - - - 200 200
Peter David Sullivan4t 4 *® 20 — — — 20 -
Rk Egkagw - - - - - 80

1,480 12,401 2,226 1,025 17.132 14,554
2007 1,460 11,173 1,026 895
* BUEBRTTHSE
m 200868138 BHE
@ H2007F4a 4B BET
B R2008F4F17TEBES
4 M200754 AR BT

2007/ 2008 3§




L BV RV G A o

EE2008F6HA30HIFEEF
(4 38 5T Y iE)
11. EEMS
FAEMALAES s MEETFHENT
2008 2007
$000 $000
EHMITESE
wE 1,320 1,300
HiITES
e 160 160
T RER 12,401 11,173
TEET 2,226 1,026
BIREG s BIHE R 1,025 895
15,812 13,254
17,132 14,554

MEE2007F R2008F6A30R I FE - fimEE -

s BRAMESAFTEECZBREARAAZERERAPNFBELERRARAT([HBEWE]) KRN
+  HRERDME L EREN K

o WHMEABSHREMASEELER  TAFEESE -

B EMEN  EERBADAZBRENFHERBRE - AHLSEVEN HEORETRES (B 2]
—EHRME29AEE -

EEME 2 oHERNT -
2008 2007
EENE BHRHA
$0 - $1,000,000 1 11
$4,000,001 - $4,500,000 - 1
$4,500,001 - $5,000,000 1 —
$8,500,001 - $9,000,000 - 1
$11,000,00t - $11,500,000 1 —
13 13

WEBTIMERERALR 70
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10. FTEBLRAS (@)

b

FREAXEg A REeRE o HE -

2008 2007
$000 $000
B FiT 45 55 A 2 F 337,320 204,589
BErERmERly 28HE - HEEBIE165% (2007 1 17.5%) 55,658 35,803
FARETREREYECHER I ZE (7.407) —
HBERTRHES & (5,287) (3.948)
TR ZRAE 493 72
BREEBH WA {12,465) {17,785)
FERELREBHAE 2 HESE 623 66
BEANMAER s HEHS {31) {11,015
rTEEBEGRE) RS (692) 124
FERIEHES 450 24,347
Frig #im & 31,342 27,664
CEEERABARAZIBHMGHEAE
2008 2007
$000 $000
HHERNEGH 44,767 19,235
AN IE 19,879 12,377
64,646 31,612

2007/ 2008 §#




7N = Y/ s =) G o~ N [

B E2008F6 A308 1L FEF
(LB HYE)
ke TR
BRAITEEAAFCHARMBRTH®EE :
2008 2007
$000 $000
HEHR@KAR 623,913 880,731
#iE
FHTERS 219,271 212,231
i Bh i 2T AR 7% hA TR A 64,383 63,284
Frig
BEBEEAE 370,576 389,338
HEBRTAE 79,812 79,390
T BEF RBUEBHKZELENES 611,331 560,166
1% B 6T B <& 1,480 1,480
HEBRTEEEZER 9,350 12,804
TR P {1,815) (4,445)
BREMRAB GIABIAER) ZHR (HFH13) 22,441 19,412

* B Y #4852 292 000 (2007 : $3,403,000) °

. FiRBAX

FBNBH RS NG EREE KB %£16.5% (2007 : 17.5%) IR 2EMH - HINEF 2 RSB AIRBE R
HRBHHEFET BB ERWE CBITHESS -

a EASGHEBRZIMAEHE<E -

2008 2007
$000 $000

BREAFR 18
FEMEB 43,138 21,768
OB 14,549 9,152
tEEEAENEHELHEBE (B8, T2 (692) 124
BIEFTB (K 5E26) {25,653) {3,380)
31,342 27,664

REEURSEEERLA 68



7. MBABA

2008 2007
$000 $000

BREES N EWA
+ 143 1,354
EEM - 1,502
143 2,856
RITREHMUBEEBERZFEHA 73,228 94,060
Bl A 3,232 2,654
76,603 99,570

ERBRANEEERCHERBBEMELZED  YUFVEERE SRR BETE -

8. RIERZE

2008 2007
$000 $000

B
BERBEERE 3,166 1,457
NERAREREEEE (FiE27) 80,430 76,834
Hi g Em A 2 2
83,598 78,293

BT SRR BER ERADENRGREE A ERESMBETEL 228 - LUF VAR ARERA*
ZHER
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WA M T X 1) PN eI

HBE2008F6 0B ILFEEF

(LB FE)

REEH &H
HZ2007FERR30EBLEE

&5 P Hith A

$000 %000 $000 $000

g A 3,848,779 215,672 (25,429) 4,038,922
MR R 106,566 76,425 321 183,312
B I A 99,570
BE KA (78,293)
Bk B 18 BRI A 7 204,589
AERAY {27 ,664)
BT Rl E 176,925
SHEE 5,227,723 120,080 92,006 5,439,809
THEE {1,713,032) {(27,891) {161,225} {1,902,148)
BEEERE 362,940 26,718 — 389,658
#HEEERE 258,520 961 — 259,481
nE&E 451,738 16,990 — 468,728
# 8 274,679 836 — 275,515
HEBRTEEZEIE 12,757 47 — 12,804
WSR2 REES 11,251 268 — 11,519
FEZRERS(BERERR) 8,174 {2) — 8,172

HinyHEERERELTEARERREAR -

R BREeRMSAEHARRBLHRGEHER -

BEETARAFTRLA
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SRER

AEMBRAN% JMAREERFNREERBBAFEY XU ERRABLZIREESW O -

SHEAMNUGRSBEERTIEZRAN - FEERMESBZEHIFTLT -

BF2008F6A308 ILEH

B R Hib T8

$000 $000 $000 $000
I-@N 3,826,516 280,562 (33,656) 4,073,422
BERF 588 223,727 120,588 - 344,315
E WA 76,603
BEkS {83,598)
B B 49 A A 337,320
EGE -4 {(31,342)
B PR B8 305,978
SHEE 4,596,259 148,751 97,635 4,842,645
SHAR {1,682.619) (31,868) {168,606) {1,883,093)
BEFXEERE 442,333 32,613 - 474,946
EHRAEERE 278,736 1,502 - 280,238
e 427,764 22,624 - 450,388
B M 282,480 1,174 - 283,654
LEREEEZ BB, (WE) 9,571 {221) - 9,350
USRS 7 BEEE 10,523 534 - 11,057
FE(BORESR) 7 REEBE {1.676) 9 — (1,667}

2007/ 2008 F 4§




5.

MR EE &)

¥ LB (4F)
iy ABEERE (47

TRENTEESRAT/MZSNHEER - ZREDEBRASHAXNZRERHZANRERAN

ZHERE/E -

e

=

7/

22NV o) G A o b -

£ FE2008F6 308 ik FH

{GUETIE)

—FHUT —FEEWME WMTERF AE #Et
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
¥2008% 68308
FEft & 2R S 161,766 - - - 161,766
HitfEdRmLEs7%E 663,110 - - - 663.110
HEBMREEEEA 76,020 86,144 351,890 791,887 1,305,941
st 900,896 86,144 351,890 791,887 2,130,817
®20074%6 4308
FEERER 154,984 — — — 154,984
HibFER AR EEZUA 711,787 — —_ — 711,787
AENBARSEERAM 65,895 76,020 298,433 931,488 1,371,836
Mt 932,666 76,020 298,433 931,488 2,238,607
AXEREE

FEAEREAAZTERRRAREAEARAERE  UARRESHMARENEARKRDR -

AEBBEATEREARNBERGRELE  aRAREEER - B RTREAEARRREANER
It ERERERBAELARY A5 HERERENLTEREARS  NERESERIERCRE -
FHREFRRESEE Bt AEEASFESRI100%BREEEN (T REFEREB) FARE -

AFE MG

UFAZIERTHERZSBIAZATE  DEBASEFATRBZOHNMBANMET - ERE
EIEDE BREEBRREEMNEERRRDHRERARFERE -

HEAUREEERLE
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5. MBEREEw

a HAEER )

(i)

(i}

i)

2007/2008 £ 4

miEE kK (&)

BRER

AEEHEFUHHECRAEMEHREREAR - THEEEREERFHESKENTE L ARG T EN
HAERHEZAVENR - *ERERRFEIARBLRIENERSFREBHLTHBRIRZHERR
B o

H2008F6A309 - HE L EEREEL AFEEMSEFEL10%  BAEEMELHRIFZTE - BliEE
HiGHEAS S B0 RE 85,506,000 (2007:$5,885,000) «

FERR

FEEBARERBTEREREZNMB 2 EBES  SEAERUBHEFH2EHRER - ZEEMEBRR
BERNFRZEASARAHFARYEMEEFTHRTZEARE  EWESERRURLEHFS
TEASH - BREEFRR  FEEFBCEETRRFZBTRERBETISINERKEASR (BRE
EHTREREZBaaRREYR BB 2 HENMEABEFMREEERES -

AEETABRLEEFDHRZERER -FRERTEFZEEH—RHARUBR B 150245
B-FAEENEROMFALTEEARS -

REVE SRR
nBESRRAEERAMZEARIGA SR B M K ST MR R AR B 2 B -

ALBRARARSALAN EARAMRREAENFAREZEERGSUERADESRE - (tW
HEMBIGHELAEREZREURRE -

FEARTDEELBINRTAT  UBRETHASUENTFFREREEEBZERRERER -
o RARTEENATRRRELERBEERE -




v A &5 HR OIROPY RT

EEZ20086 5305 1 F
(LB T HE)

M EMRER

FHIBREMFAEAERBRMBRBIZHZEN - AEOEE T BMEEARRETSRE  FHREREEDE
SRR - AEEFRGTHIEMEERRE  SAREXARAMTEEMERR FHREZARERZBRREFH
ERUBAZSRNS  UHIRBHARHGBERVER ZBETHEERE -

a HBERE

{#)

5 E

AEAzTHRBREENERR FEEBREOKEE FEETRREHIZERR 2D LR R
% =

SHER B

AEEZDREEEAEBL - HERRKERAREERS CRRIZEERAMURESHARE FEA -
TESRET BT RERARE - itih - ARMIEBBINMEAR P EARATERET 2 SMEE HIR
FIRRERY - ZEAERBAETER 2 ENEBBaRERRE 2 BE R -

AEBEETEEFTEUETHHE - MBTHETHEN  ARSIERRREANMTEN - ARERELE
EITERSMNEH IED -

H200856A308 - AEELASMESE 7 € REEZE 53$961,970,000(2007 : $1,015,389,000) + HH LA
ExiEz &R B EREESI% (2007 : 97%) -

R2008F6FA30RA - MATHETHOKEMI% - MAFECZBERHTE - RIXEEMRBAUEN S
hnsk i 2> $8,539,000 (2007 - $9,878,000) °

FE @
FHEEZHERREIERAFARTER - HENYEAZERSHF ST RUEBELATENERR -
AREBTIERABRETERNRLY  URNEFEBESHRBITIHRITER -

H2008F6H308 - A BN E L 100B RS  EFfEHMELEFRFTE B8 TR AE F A E
MR $16,365,000 (2007 : $23,165,000) * ZEEMNBITFERZPBW A BT HEEME -

100EER 7 B EEFEEFENANEET T BAFEFRAMZAFIRUAZ 2 BEE -

GEBEUMEEERL2T
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3. RHEEH

v BRESRK
BEALRIRREWERR RN - AARABRASRZBRERFREMBERANBERARM -

v RFBEAL
AEEVERENS  WAEHEHEEXRBEENES  RUHEF UBREERARBTEERAEZR (R
EEAEHHEREERBRESERAEEN) r IRE HAELWEEAFHTREATHRERELREE - A
HWEALTEFRAREALT HEATTSBEAR LI -

4. RGN RME
EHRANDREBFEBRAMEZRARTIMG  ZSPReREE THATHARFHZGERHA -

AEBERRELGET RER - MREFLZEAEHEETR LRAMNRAERTEER - TXNREHAEARE
BT HBREREAERAGREEAFEEAERZGEMNRS

a BEAEZUERTH
MBEBEMERZEATEAERRAMA - BN TRGELRNAR AR FEFEAXTHEIAEMEG
HEHEEAEZREVERE R RENEY  c EEEROFETRS  UTHAHBREHEATER
EWRERE - HTHRHCERRNEE RUNEEERZRAMEACTIRAN - TERAEHIREBAR
BEFERRAWEE  ERBTREFEMREBRALGS - MERIABHBEEETIEL 2 E - BIES
eIt ARENERTHE SELHERE -  TARRYHEEE  aEANGEEETR - 178
BB TR FNBERAE -

b BEEHBEE
AEETETE AN AN E RSN EE 2 EFTEERAGZATHE - ERYAERHFAHE
ZOTEE BEEBEFRANMEIZFARASHEERURE -EEBRBEAYEZER  THESR
FHRZUEEERERASETRRVEGARRERE  MAERZMRENLRAIEEER ZE R NEF
BIEAMIE -

c BERME
REEHB  AREISHEEEERBRPEEERTREFG -

TEEERBHAMEERE LHESG  (\EHc@4sMeydiEfE S0 QEEEHE/TRRZ
RERBRFEE 7 FRAERTIHZBEAEZLRER  RQOETEABERENTRERM - EREHE
ARBEREREE (N8 2R (BERSRERAPEAZTALXERERR/R) - TUEBLEEERZ
MBRARSEREA -

2007/ 2008 £ 8




3.

R /A BT A IR P ex
B F2008FE6 308 1 FE
(LT FE)

ENEEm)

RAAERAM
RARERECRESHMARELLEE HEEERARR RASRIHETR LT HER - MAR
M3 TR R EIRE (F) B -

ZRBETEMER  OERTELREENARAN  THBRRMETER - RTHEREESLAN
WK FRAEARRILAE -

HRARMEECHFEFHMTESIELRE  HEBEERKRE-"FTREREHFENRESF LT RER - M
FEMYTHERENZERARFHETEYR - AAGHATRRECREFTHASIEZHTEE - BAR
MHETAREEEERER (B CeBREAEBRMREAR -

SARAMTENER  BESEMERERAMIFRE - MERERZ TRt RBOYATRLRERER  ®F
BB HEDRMRE -

L PR

WARBEFAHEAREYERBETHEERRBEH2CREEEABZLTE - MAENRERE - BRI
n- ARBHEEARHEERIT -

BWARGSEBBRERMOT -

(ih HE"Em

HEMRZUANEFAR ERERBHEHBEERE  IRAGNEEEFLMAEERE  URAE
HE % 73 BB A8 WSk TR T MR BB T LABERR -

(i) REBARS

RERBBAABEZUADEREEZ AHBASRRREBZERFH - ARIRHBRBRHER - MiZE
RS BHEASE 2 RS EFERBRABTLARE - ARFERTERARAN -

Gii)  F8 WA

i) B4R A SEARTT IS M SRR [ bt IR 032 - MEGRARRRE - FRESSREEAZETRE
RE S RARSRERZTIAZRERBARMEZ 8F  SRARKBUEREARERA -

fiv) RBWA

R BUA TR W AR AR HE ST 14 BERD

REECRABAERLS

60
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3. BRWEE @

q B

EXRERBEEHMAR CRB ARRNMEERE  RAULFEHRERUBITEL  RAMSHETSR
fERTHY - HRERBE - AREESBTTHIERE -

MEZRFUETE REBETERRALERUARFEE TN  SERERXERER - IEER—BFE
FRlfMBRa R —EABREMZERRE Z e MER(E - NAKEERE -

AEDEAARRFAEREAXURALEAEZ AEHE  ERBERTSHE B NBMERZRETZ
FIERBTE - BERMEZAETMEN 2 BEERRFLAE -

r EREH

{i)

(i}

(iii}

(v}

2007/2008 E8

BEZEHRERN

BEZFRESFEREESRYURER - BELFAL  HESECRERBMELZFRIEHAR
TR -

EEZER ER - BERREMREMRAARES PHRR -
FEALEH B

FEBZBHEAEFANECHRIAARAY  ZAELSEEERTLRAREEEEMAFHE T
Bo-ROBGHATHBERYGSIBEEAER  SEBEIEZEE -

RKER

SEEAHERRBCATHIBRAFE (BERNELRS)  HEE RABUGHEEAEZRKH -
ARE 8l — R A RMIBH AR HARN -

ERAEHAMGIBIRTARHMELRETEEREFHENMERE MR REERELSRER
MR A -

s 177 3 B

AEBEZE -EHURELEE  UENEMZE  HEERERSMEF 2 BERE 2 ATERRARM
%o BREBEANERX RSB EMETEREL A TERTE (TeREaEmEStE s 8Bk
HHELZZE WMENEIRASHEIERIED) - EREEST TATR ZBRE B R - ERJET
BUHEZRBGE—UER  c REEED  ZUREENES TR BAERE REZ A - ¥
HirG REREREEFRRGETAELZEE (WA - MR THEBIAMEAMELIEERE -

BERFR (B EAEERS R SRE) ETEBRRESBARAK (EHE) REAEE -




7 =N B B 5 S A of R

E F2008F6 305 ILFEE
(BB FE S E)

BRREE (m)

BeERBE&SHY

REARLRDERP ROeRALSEVEERETR  FHERE  FARBRITREGHBRBZERENR
BAREMmMASHEESZREAHEE - ZFTRESAPNYBRCAZREEE  NELSBRARE ) RREA
EIEARIM - RERRSEEYTAEAXNRARNEYBKAREARSEE - Bo 2RTEX - RITE
UNHAGAREAMRTAPDABT ZEEA -

Bx
HERRTDERAMS -

BEITHRNBREEZEERNZ B SR ARNBREREREERIBMBIRBELRE -

HEREERES

EENEERAFANBRABETIRARZ c THRFANE  BTRALESRAZXRCRAARAREL
ZBEERE  BEAAED BN SLERZSAINZBEARAT  RERBREFRZMZHABRRBR
BREBERBR - BHAREEHKADE : FERAMBZISRE) BREBEEZ EAZRIREEE
AEEBNRENMERBERPER -

REFEBEABETEN  TEEREEBELHAKELNAARUL  BREARBRARYAMT -

BREERFRE  REXARNETERERRETATURAREARNEE 2 REZ BRRK G BEE AU
EERAGEELZ BRAERMERMNESDH -

BREABEENST —BOZEBERATEEELERNY - BERTELREAERARTHERBEMLR
ZHEETEETHMMBERE - EECEBEERARTARNEEMRZBRE D EH TP LK
B HEXATEESERELIEAE -

BERER
BEMEHRAAAARAENARIZBEARACHBRR RN ERE 2 ERZRELREHE - AW -
BHEEGHDBEET —BATHEEHARABRRNRBRAZZSE - IFEIERZH (RBHEHRIN 2&
EXAEmEL  RABREHRERTTAR BEMBHURSEADRARIHE ECRA - RESKBHAR
RS HEE2RABEREHARBEBERAZHRS (REUR) #E -

BRATRHEEZHR MM ARARRERHAFMRERLHEAR -

BEFRSHRIAMNBRASRBELCAREELZERERMES  HRAREAEHNERZEZ BENAE
B BB 2 R A AR AE W) R R T R [ A BR S -

UBRBATAEAFRLT
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3.

GREE ®

j

SREE (&)
(i) nPitHESRMEE ()

LSMEIEY T BRARMHNEZEWES I ATHEHEY  SRAZFIHERARDEEFREEZH
fESEEZESEBTUIN BAEBENEABARER MEIEZA0BBRIERLEKE
Ao SBATHREZEBESINERUEEZFENE S A TER BN BERER -

MARATHNE? FAHELGHINAAER  EXRBRER 2 ATEARSURER A Z N
BEIGTAGSBEER - BERAMRFTH o MHEEESFNE - REAHEERER - WARREREITRR
ZHEME - AR ERATAZRERES RS RER -

WERE s ATEDERERITERENYE - HESHEEZ NS TER - RMFELTEFNS - &8
BERRAEERDEELTE  ZTHOOERMNENGHZS  SLZHARYHERAZTA  BE2RE
REASWRBEETHEEN YRREADSBHEBERERRIFHAEBZREER -

AEENEHRERTNRCEFRERIERT eRAES XESREELRAE - RABATHLESR
BEEZRFESME TATEHEFAATREN  AZRZBFIAYHATRBREYNTHRERE
RERZ - WARHESRERURREZEE  REE (EBARFARRTATRIER  HAEY
RFERaATERZAMRES R S22 RIRENMEEEERER - MEAARRERZBET
AREEETRIGSHEZRTEDR - EZEURF . BEBRSHHEE30) -

5H
FEEEFEEES  DUARERETERFEZEEENE - MAUMETSBEEGHE - ABRZFRDE
REREBAETIREHER HERZRBHEERA -

B EER R GERRE

FEg R B H e BRI A FERR - REATRMEZRCHERTRERRERFHAE - BYE
ERAEMGEUFAIAERE RURFTESERTARESBARBEEFUAZ REGREQAE IS TR
EREY BEALBEREMBES EHATRTHRERETHHER  MEERXKBIMAE  HRRAE
WEEBRRORELER BACBEAAERABEGHRICHERBZAE HERMNERASH B2
H-BESENEAHESRZ [HBEMZ PR -

2007/ 2008 ¥ ¥




12 = N2 - B L A o o

B F2008E6 530 iF FFE
(LB TR )

3. BEBRG

i EHMAHE
AEMBEESREES AN TERR  ERREUIE  BEHHAZHBESFRTHEEGSRAE - 58D
VIBALRAEZANNE - ERBNVISHERATReRAESIR -

{i}

(i)

(i)

B R R

R RN AEAY N RREET SR TAMARE R I MESVAZ A TASRAE - EFHHA
BERARBDEERN HTEENNAAKTEREH 2BALE - RERALFEERDEE - HRRE
BHRERGSEEAMRUERER DA @YK 78R (BRE30) -

BREIMNZERES

BEIHAEEEAEEETNIHEZAREHE  FREIH I EFARAERBRARREN RN
BEEINPAZETEATASHAE #HENHAZFHEHFNEHA REHEHBERLEAEZH
H) M REARE - WEFASBALERENBARZNHAZ EMAZE GREW/DIY - BIERRERHE
BEY  YHENSEAURHECREE -REVNHAZERBEDIAERDEE - HIHE LR
HEHER12EAERIBRBEE -

FRUREEERFHATHENEERARORNEESRAEREELARE - ERSBRALE
$ EETSEERARHRATREN  GREARTZIHRZMBEFAELHR - MAEXHAZH
BEFTFECARSHE  ABR(REFRFARBATRZSHIE) ANESRBBRTHR

TRLESREE

AU ESREEARER BRI TAAEME RN ZETETE - BATEBAEREHRABE
H12EARNEARMRELE  TRIBFIAERBEE -

FHRAEENNRSE (MAEEAHMERZEES A ER - MAFE AR FEIABRRZER
BE HEYSBREERATENRSMARR - BUDESRARGREZENENHNCER - X
SHEOAREEREARZARBEAREE - SR L RR2ZSRE - JRECEREEZRRAT
HIE - ERRRERERFAEZEY O ZMBE 50 AR RIAIRHBRED Rk -

HBRETREMERLS
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3. EHEBE @

h HEAE
HEARAZRERAEZEXBAMEREEM - AEHE  BRAREAHEE - ERAAYRGRAMEFELZR
WEMERR LRz EERE  ARBEABYEESR -

iy AREMABAZEE

HAEMLURAREAEGEECRE  GUEEIREEEAECTE  ARERANREZRE GIRE
ZERMAEERE MEEARGMIHRRARBIMGIARERARS - BANREI ZRERTR
HEHAGAZSBRER  URSAANESRTERELEECHNBERERLE -

DRAHARACEERGEZGHUTEAFHEOH(URE ZREE) #FHHE - RESAREN
MMM BT BEAR -

(il HMEBARA

HEAEMREGEREFHEE - MHSNAENEENEARERZIRESRERME - BRFEFER
HHELNEERRMNHERSEAREZ WS - FURZETHB NGRS HARRTER - F
BESFNREE L 8D -

i FERMEERE
WEFEMFERZEERREE  HAZVESFHERE  ARBESTENAABAAR  METRKREER
BelEE - FARGEEXAEZRE ERREBH2EE  MRREETHEAUERER  MBATKRAE
AMTIREE - ETAERS RESBEAECRAABLTHEGHEZ ZERE - THENEHRAKEY
LCEFEBLERFLERREUREZESE)HE - BHEFERE  AERTIARIZRERE(HE
ELEM) ZREKRFSR - RERMS  SREEHARETR  MNARSEAREANEETATEERZH
EERE -
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wih o a &0 FHX 1K PN AT
BT 200856530H1EFF
(LB T 5HE)

3. BWHER@

Cild ¢
EEAENBLRENR RN ERRBREBREIE - BELRSRBEEASREAREE ZMX -

HEMAREREHIEE 2BRRREENSTTRRAAREEN - MZHE ZRAETRTER - AKX
AFEFAREZ EEEHERAR AR ER) - FEACEZERERAAERES ZHMBEHH AR
FEaRBRIE -

AEdEZFHREHTEAFE UESEEARAHHEHFSTERH - TRAZIESERERN
T

HEMEEE EHESFH
M R RS ERE 10%-60%
TR - FERROCEEELRE 20%-33'1:%
HttEBTAE 20%-33Y:%

MEIRAOERERDERTERREERNFZBARS - BRZFHWARAZ B HERKRHT -
ERERRzEMES  BREPZRE  HESFELTERE -

HEtETAERRENSE  RB - BARKE-

AEZEEERTERATHEHGRSEE R PLRRN  XELHAER (WEAR) -
MEAEBEEERNEGHTRESE  HAERTESINHRERT KO ® (M3 -

HEZBAELEERERRERE 2 LERHEE - WA AKRSHEER -

RERYNMEDERLA
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3. ERBE W)

| e HWBREEH
| i) EEAF

AR EHHESERHIET B ZRATRN (ERNEESBREERR CER) - HRERMBHNRS
KT BFARAERE®REY
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(c) TAHIKIE
HEBRANBREERGE A 2E 8 YA - LR KT ENEERE

(d TREARBOEF
HEFEHR SRR ERE2003F £2004F6 A30R IERMERRFREAHFHRBLEEE -

GEEREARTEIEBREZER  ERMEEMERSENFE N R GHBECRBOBRL CBBREZ 2T E
HRABEMY  MRERZASHETEREN - BRGEXRETBENHIETRAERTE (AR HREMHER
B NEEBRBEAN(HRHESEZRAMBT) -

KRR GRAONHR -SENBEEENHERRENEE  RERSERBR  AERSSHOBBEZ BN EE -
BREABARTMEOABHE  TERNE SRARNECREASFENBEFERAZR -

RPESRMERGAARRBER RS ZHEH
R2008%6A30A « REBEHRMRIKFIFBCRMATHFENERMMAR - WAARARBES RN LEBOAL (D
AEEREAETHABTREER) BT :

52 ETREG
#8 B 4 4B By aatt
Cellular 8 Holdings Limited ([Cellular 8])° 318,038,972 55.49%
FREMERREAR AR ([FEEME]) s 332,206,897 57.96%
HSBC International Trustee Limited ([HSBC])3 332,806,708 58.06%
Marathon Asset Management 58,313,896 10.17%
Brandes Investment Pariners, L.P. 34,255,963 5.97%
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(155 2003528108 9.2 2003E5R2BE 133,500° — — - 132500
21255718
2004%2F5H 900  2005%2Rs5BE 970,000° - - - 970,000
201452A48
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201442848
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2015%28288
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3. THER=gz—MEBRETHR20055 2 AcBRKITE - TER=02 - NBERETHN2006E2AsBRAKRTHE 2 HBRETR
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B LR S AR EBEBEREGREBBETEOSESE - B EXABREESN - FATELMBARERER
o 1T EEHEKRK -
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REATHENTRLE

20




19

(c) FWABEERTIEEEZMOROAEGUATER

L2

HEARE ZUERiEn RS L

FAD) BERTREG BrERER GERTRE

aRzEa8 R [k 1 RAEZHD Bal
Splendid Kai Limited 2,500 25 1,500 15
Hung Carom Company Limited 25 25 15! 15
Tinyau Company Limited 1 50 " 50
BEAERLA 8 80 4 40

Biit -

L ORBBRSREBAES - BUHBALL - BEMEAL BRTAERBFABALREAREZSRGTETENE ESREEARD
AZBEBNE -2 - ZAFRAHEFRAFRESTERARE SRS THEYELAL  BHERLE  BRIEER
PABAERSAEEEEERECHEIBALTEEANMBRBEARZELRPHAES -

B EXETEER AN - RR2008F6A30F - IAEELARSITRAR(BEESZEBRRMBRZTR RESZHEA
RELT - EMB DA EAHESHEERY - AERMTIESTEANRRFERREMERSUAR - MAREMR
BEA#RBERAE2EMREFENBLMHA  EEEHFLMERAIEXNVERRE Eh R Z LT RRERET
BHLZHHIEETAD  BOEE LT RPN -

RA R HE ST B
RIEE D FR20028 11 A158 ARMA 2 BB (TRAESHBI) Mg - ARATRTLRE (BEABZEERE
B) I AR A A MR -

1. BREFIHEIRER
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HERE
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300 | (EAZ* rREGE
it b AtAR EHRE IATHEZ 5c8
A8 Fi2 (FaxH HRER fTRB
| €4:% o] 14 #8) b8 141 &t {2 &t Balt
BRE 75,000 - — 1,089,794,895' 1,089,269,395 — 1,089,869,895 42.50
T8 145,904 — - - 145,304 — 145,904 0
FRE - - 18,000 - 18,000 - 18,000 0
HiEt

- BESSELNEEN  BYEat  BHAAL  BRIALCREABAEASAET2HEAAESAERAMERAR
BERHT 21,066,617 3470 T - BFEXRARTNAZEERAR —BHEN -

by WEBERAEEARLQA(FHEAD

HREE

Big 4311

BUR .4 E%3 RE£HE

13,51 Ftaa EHES IATHEZ #eR

A8 Fiz2 (FpEE HRRG ikt
'Y 11 BE -§21) ) RibEn aht KE &t 581
il - - - 1,742,500¢ 1,742,500 - 1,742,500 008
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fug-
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j§3:24 #A) ) i) ReRs aif KE it B
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BEEERRERBE2008F6A0RLFRZ2HESERNCERZIMBERER -

TEHEK
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EE
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B
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AERBERE
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fli
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BREHOFRE
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HiE - Aok
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#2008E6 300 - AEEA1,7902 2 WES (200756H308 : 16928) - KBS RE
HEET - BE2008F6A308 +FE 2B I A KETAG430,000,000(2006/07 :
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EEURHMELBRERAY HERCIRALEF - LAARBEEE  ARTHE
SR> ERBRERNESRBMEN - BHNRERKS S LBERTHER - ARET
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BEAEm BRIESE  ARFTRAEEEREBERZSWER TR RS
FRTZREG - BE2008F6F308 LK - LSRR BEEMR - 5979,000{7 RREERTT
{5 LA A8 2N 22 §1979,000RR A5 {2 - B 7 388,00017 M8 A% 4 1 i 81 = K 2 » HH2008%F6 530
A - M7 AT 9,286,500 (2007F 6308 : 10,653,50013) °
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AENRIMR R BB I N2 % = $64,000,000(2006/07 : $63,000,000) + E2006
o) ToRmEIPCSREAHNZ 2 BHTERY -

B 4 A 23% E$77,000,000(2006/07 © $100,000,000) - T EHAIEIRF
REEBEF EHERRL  RERFIRKETHSETHEBTEAT - &4
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BERE  HAHBESRUEER
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AEEHEEERENATH 200856 ANB 7R RVITESKEIZEEDHA » BEREHIEEIES1,677,000,000(2007
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B E2008F6A30ELLFE ARHEE XK I RSTMAFE R Y EZ FISFHEH 51 4%$1,089,000,000 % $79,000,000 -
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Bl B {1
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1 A BB 3 18 B 1 % ZE $4,073,000,000(2006/07 = $4,039,000,000) - EH k&)l
HEBBBAEREI%  BOMANTEREEHE THE28%EE - RARPURE
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BB TH2% - 8% 3% 2 7+88% Z$344,000,000(2006/07 : $183,000,000} °
MEWATH]23% - BERS (T ERERRDAMARGFRBEEH EER
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